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THE CENTRAL COUNCIL.

The publication this week of the agenda of the Central
Council meeting, which is to be held at Shrewsbury on
Whitsun Tuesday, once again focuses attention upon ihe
work of the central organisation of ringers. The official
minutes printed in our last issue are a reminder of the
many activities of the Council and the business for the
next meeting promises to cover just as wide a ground.
It is important, however, that ringers should remember
that the work of the Council is not confined to the one
day in the year, when the annual meeting is held.
Through the various committees the Exercise is being
served by the Council throughout the year, and the Whit-
suntide assembly of the Council is for the consideration
of what the committees have done, as well as for provid-
ing the opportunity of discussing subjects for the well-
being of the art and promoting the interests of ringers.
Useful as is the purpose of these debates, the greatest
service which the Council renders to the Exercise is
through the agency of its committees, the work of which,
probably, would never be done but for the influence and
backing of such a body as the Council which alone is in
a position to make the results available to the ringing
community.

This year sees a parting of the ways and henceforward
the Council will proceed under the new constitution which
it adopted two years ago and which comes fully into
operation with the election of a new Council, which will
meet in London next year. Under the new rules the
Council will directly represent the affiliated bodies Instead
of consisting simply of members elected by recognised
ringing societies. The Council will have a direct
responsibility to the affiliated organisations, and in that
way will carry a greater authority when it speaks on be-
half of the Exercise, as well as, we hope, commanding
greater respect in its attempts to guide the efforts of
ringers into those channels which are considered in the
best interests of the art. The work of the Council is
growing, and there is evidence that the time has arrived
when it is desirable that the Council should be able to
elect a greater number of honorary members. These
members are elected because of the service which, in one
direction or another, they can render to the Council.
There is no place in their ranks for ‘ ornamental * mem-
bership, and in recent years very few indeed have been
given complimentary seats. When the Council was
founded it had 73 elected members and twelve honorary
members. Through the years the number of elected
members has slowly grown until it is more than double
its original total, but the honorary membership has been

(Continued on page 242))
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WM. POTTS & SONS. LTD.

(BSTABM3HKD 1B1J),

CATHEDRAL, CHDRCH AND TOWER CLOCK MANUFACTURERS

Mikiri of many of the largest and most important Clocks
In the World.

CLOCKS REPAIRED AND DIALS RESTORED.

Also MaKera ot SMALL CLOCKS of every description for
all purposes.

Illustrated Catalogue, Specifications, Designs and Estimates on request.

*THE GUILDFORD CLOCK WORKS,1
Bankfleld Terraoe, Burley, Leeds.

and at 9, Adelphi Chambers, Shakespeare Street, Newcastle-on-Tyne,
19, Cannon Street, Manchester,
and 96, Carver Street, Moorhead, Sheffield.

THE RINGER'S BADGE,

Supplied as Stud (or Buttonhole,
Brooch or Pendant
W ith name ol your Association engraved
(as Illustration).
Set. HALL MARKED GOLD -
plus tbe Increased cost of gold.
BALL MARKED SILVER
GILT OR WHITE METAL 4/-
Names or Presentation Inscriptions can
be engraved on the reverse side at a
small extra charge*

GEQ. STACEY, S ,\V AD

6, PARK ST., MINEHEAD, SOMERSET

30/-

Exact size

CHARLES MEE,

8TONE AND MARBLE NASON
SPROUGHTON, IPSWICH

PEAL TABLETS

In Marbleor Stone toany design, also
Ecclesiastical and General Masonry.
Estimates Free
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JOHN NICOLL.

Church Bell Rope and Clock Rope
Manufacturer,

64, LEWISHAM PARK, LONDON, 8.E.13

Late ol BERMONDSEY and PECKHAM.

Maker to St. Paul's Cathedral, Westminster Abbey, Imperial Insti-

tute, Canterbury, Edinburgh, St. Albans, Lincoln, Durham, Peter-

borough, Melbourne (Australia), Rochester, Dublin, St. Patrick’s,
Manchester, Durban and Worcester Cathedrals, etc., etc.

Mufflers, Ringing Mats, Matting, Flag Lines, etc., etc.
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increased only to 15 and every place is filled. It is never
known when the services of some ringer, specially fitted
for a particular task, may be required and therefore it is
now proposed to make the maximum number of hon.
members 20. When it is recollected that any election to
one of the vacancies will be for the direct purpose of
rendering service to the Exercise and that such appoint-
ments will be a definite gain to ringing, this extension of
honorary membership should be welcomed, although it
is certain to be used sparingly. Waith the application of
the new rules, also, some of the associations will be able
to elect additional members. Instead of electing, say,
one or two representatives when entitled to a larger num-
ber, and paying affiliation fees only for the members
actually elected, all affiliated societies will be responsible
for paying affiliation fees for the full number of members
to which they are entitled, and it follows, we hope, that
the full quota of representatives will be elected to the
Council. Every association benefits directly or indirectly
from the work of the Council, and under the new rules
all will take their full share of responsibility.

EIGHT BELL PEALS.
NUNEATON, WARW ICKSHIRE.
THE WARWICKSHIRE GUILD.
On Thursday, April 4, 1935, in Two Hours and Fi/Ziy-Sevtn Minutes.
At thb Parish Churchb,

A PEAL OF CAMBRIDGE 8URPRISE MAJOR, 6056 CHANGES*
Johnson's Variation of Middleton's. Tenor 14J cwt.
Thomas W. Chapman ... Treble Frank E. Pervin
Frank W. Perrens....... 2 Ernest Stone
Joseph H. W. W hite .3 Douglas H. Argvi
«Alfred King .niie. 4 I James George

Conducted by Frank W. Pbrrbns.
*  First peal in the method. Rung in honour of Mr. Thomas W.
Chapman's ringing jubilee at the Parish Church.
BOOKING, ESSEX.
THE ESSEX ASSOCIATION.
On Thursday, April 4, 1935. in Three Hours and Four Minutes,
At the Chorch of St. Mary,
A PEAL OF SUPERLATIVE 8URPRISE MAJOR, 6056 CHANCES ;

Tenor 18$ cwt. in E.
Clacdb Snowden  ....... Treble Edward P. Duffield ... 5
Gborge Ives i 2 Ronald H. Bullen ... 6
Frederick Ridgwell .. 3 Lbwis W. W iffen
Miss Hilda Snowden .. 4 Arthor Saonders

Composed by F. Dench. Conducted by E. P. Duffield.
FRODSHAM, CHESHIRE.
THE LANCASHIRE ASSOCIATION.
On Saturday, Aptil 6, 1935, in Three Hours,
At the Chorch of St. Lawrence,
A PEAL OF CAMBRIDGE SURPRISE MAJOR, 5056 CHANGES!

Tenor 124 cwt.
Wiilliam BibbVv............. Treble John Booth......iiins 5
eEdwin C. Birkbtt .. 2 Gborge R. Newton 6
Miss Norah M. Bibby ... 3 John E. Bibby ... 7
James W. Grounds.......... 4 Edward Cauncb ... Tenor

Composed by C. Middleton.
* First peal in the method.
DARTFORD, KENT.

THE KENT COUNTY ASSOCIATION
On Monday, April 8. 1935, in Two Hours and Fifty-Five Minutes,

At the Church of the Holy T rinity,

A PEAL OF CAMBRIDGE 8URPRI8E MAJOR, 5068 CHANGES)
Tenor 18 cwt.

Conducted by George R. Newton.

Frank W alker ... Treble John H. Cbebsman ... 5
=Jambs F. Bayley 2 John Whbadon ........ 6
Harry Hovbrd...... 3 George H. Cross R
George J. Butcher... 4 Herbert E. Audslby........... Tenot

Composed by E. Midd.l.é;rm. Conducted by J. H. Chbbsman.
*  First peal of Cambridge on nn.'.insidéell. Rung as a birth-
day compliment to the Vicar's daughter.
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MOORSIDE, OLDHAM.
THE LANCASHIRE ASSOCIATION.
On Tuesday, April 9, 1935, in Two Hours and Fijty-Five Minutes,
At thb Church.of St. Thomas,
A PEAL OF 8TEDMAN TRIPLES, S040 CHANGES;
Heywood’'s Transposition of Thorstans’ Fodr-part.
Tenor 18 cwt.

Fred Dunkerlby ..Treble  J. Frank Smalilwood... 5
Frank Lawton ... 2 Ivan Kay . 6
Stephen Parry ... 3 Thomas B. Worsley ... 7
Harry A, Mbllor 4 John W. Trdblovb ...Tenor

Conducted by T. B. worsliby.

Rung as a farewell to the Rev. J. H. Garnett, also to celebrate the
baptism of Allen George Dunkerley, son of Fred Dunkerley.

NORBURY (HAZEL GROVE), CHESHIRE.
THE CHESTER DIOCESAN GUILD.
On Saturday, April 13, 1935, in Two Hours and Fifty-Four Minutes,
At the Chorch op St. Thomas,

A PEAL OF 8PLICED LONDON. BRI8TOL, CAMBRIDGE, & SUPERLATIVE
8URPRISBE MAJOR, B07.4 CHANCES;

Tenor 14 cwt. 3 qr. 21 Ib.

Richard E. Jones ..Treble Jambs A. Milner ... 5
Jambs Fbrnley ... 2 W alter W. W olstbncropt 6
W ilprbd Stevenson.. 3 W ittiam Fbrnlby 7

Lionel Clough ... _ 4 John Worth
Composed by Rev. H. Law James. Conducted by John Worth.

First peal of Spliced Surprise Major in four methods in the county,
by the Guild and by all the band. This peal contains 2,944 London,
608 Bristol, 736 of Cambridge and Superlative. First attempt for the
peal by tho band.

WARNHAM, SUSSEX.
THE SUSSEX COUNTY ASSOCIATION.
On Saturday, April 13, 1935, in Three Hours and Eight Minutes,
At the Chorch of St. Margaret,
A PEAL OF DOUBLE NORWICH COURT BOB MAJOR, 5088 CHANCES;
Tenor 14 cwt. 2 qr. 11 1Ib.
Treble
2 IEdward J. Cbarman 6
3 John C0 0K .ovniieciiiies . 7
4 Alfred H. Polling.. . Tenor
Composed by James Hcnt. Conducted by Alfrbd H. Polling.

* First peal in the method 'inside.” t First peal in the method.
The conductor's 50th peal of Double Norwich.

WEST WYCOMBE, BUCKINGHAMSHIRE.
THE OXFORD DIOCESAN GOILD.
(East Berks and Sooth Bocks Branch.)
On Saturday, April 13, 1935, in Three Hours and Seven Minutes,
At the Parish Chorch of St. Lawrbncb,

A PEAL OF DOUBLE NORWICH COURT BOB MAJOR, S024 CHANCES;
Tenor 16 cwt.

.. Treble

John H. B. Hesse #Raymond W ood, jon. ... 5
W alter Cbarman
C. Ernest smith

Peter Charman

Harry Wingrove George Martin..... 5

Frederick G. Biggs.. 2 Wiilliam Birmingham 6
Ronald Biggs e 3 William Henley ... 7
W ittiam H. Fossell .4 W ilfrbd Edwards ... Tenor

Composed by cornelios charge, 0f New Zealand.
Conducted by George Martin.

The figures of tho composition were given to the conductor at
Christchurch last December.

RINGERS HANDBOOK

by E. S.and M. POWELL.
Containing full and complete instruction from the first handling
of a bell to the ringing and conducting of Peals of Grandsire,
Stedman, Plain Bob and Kent Treble Bob.

A large selection of Compositions included.

I'rice :— Complete edition, to 8 bells, cloth, 120pp. 2/9 (6 copies
for 15/-). 6 bell edition, sewn, paper covers, 64pp., i/2 (6copies
for 6/-).
OBTA%NABLE ONLY post free from Rev. E. S. POWELL,
Btaverton Yicarage, near Daventry.
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ARDLEIGH, ESSEX.
THE ESSEX ASSOCIATION.
On Saturday, April 13,1935, tn Three Hours and Fourteen Minutes,
At the Chorch of St. Mary-thb-Virgin,
A PEAL OF GRANOSIRE TRIPLES, SMO CHAHGESI
Tenor 14 cwt.
‘George M. Rasbbrook ... 5

Parker's Twelve-part

Percy Green ..Treble

eVictor A. Kbrridghb ‘“William Cbalk 6
William J. Nbvard ... w 3 George Green w7
-Allan R. Andrews ... Gborgb A. Wigbtman ..Tenor

3
. Condu_cted by George Green.
_* First peal of Grandsire. Believed to be the first peal of Grand-
sire o1t the bells.

HALSTEAD, ESSEX.
THE ESSEX ASSOCIATION.
On Saturday, April 13, 1935, in Two Hours and Fifty-Eight Minutes,
At the Chorch of St. Andrew,
A PEAL OF YORK8HIRE SURPRISE MAJOR, S056 CHANCES;
Tenor 144 cwt. in F.

Frederick Ridgwell ...Tteble Frank Claydon 5
Alec M. Clknerv o= 2 Albert W iffbn 6
eClaode Snowdbn ... 3 Lbwis W. W iffbn . .7
M iss Hilda Snowden *Artbor Saonders ... Tenor

Conducted bv Lewis W. wWiffen.

Composed by G. Lbwis.
First peal in the method on the bells.

* First peal in the method.

SIX BELL PEALS.

LANGHAM, RUTLAND.

THE PETERBOROUGH DIOCESAN GUILD.

(Rotland Branch.)
On Monday, March 25, 1935, in Two Hours and Fifty-Seven Minutes,

At the Parish Chorch,

A PEAL OF BOB MINOR, 6040 CHANGES:

Seven different extents. Tenor 16 cwt.

W. H. Smith J.B. ward... ... 4
*D. wright tj. F. Hubbard .3
A. L. Ward 3 J. H. BlIcff ...Tenor

Conducted by J. H. B 10 ff.
t First peal of Minor.
WALLINGTON, HERTS.
THE BEDFORDSHIRE ASSOCIATION.
Ot saturday, April 6, 1935, in Two Hours and Thirty-Five Minutes,
At the Chorch of St.
A PEAL OF DOUBLES, 6040 CHANGES;
Being twelve six-scores of Bob Doubles and ten each of St. Simon’s,
Union, and Grandsiro Doubles. Tenor 8 cwt. I qr. 25 Ib. in A flat.
..Treble Percy Tompkins.....
2 Lewis H. Bywatbrs
John Chorch e 3 W illiam Bygravb
Conducted by L. H. Bywatbrs.
MADELEY, SHROPSHIRE.
THE HEREFORD DIOCESAN GUILD.
On Wednesday, April 10, 1935, in Three Hours,
At the Chorch of St. Michael,
A PEAL OF BOB MINOR, 6040 CHANGES;
Being seven 720's, each called differently. Tenor 14 cwt.
..Treble t/OSEPH L. Stanier ... ... 4
2 ‘Henry Nbwbrook ... ... 5
-Harold E. F. Harrison... 3 «Christopher Godgeon ...Tenor
Conducted by C. codgbon.

* First peal of Minor, t First peal of Minor on a working bell.
First peal of Minor as conductor. ung on the eve of the Confirma-
tion service; also as a farewell to the Rev. Charles Fletcher (curate),
who is shortly leaving Madeley to take up the living of Cardington.

BELL ROPES

MADE FROM ITALIAN HEMP OR ITALIAN FLAX.
SOFT AND PLIABLE IN HAND. ALL ROPES SENT
CARRIAGE PAID AND ON APPROVAL.

Cheap Quotations.  Established 150 years. 'Phone 103.

DAVID MAXON, ROPE WORKS, CRAHTHAM

* First peal,

Mary,

Rbginald T. Newman

Francis Beaomont

eHarry Harrison

*Jack T ranter
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ALDINGTON, KENT.
THE KENT COUNTY ASSOCIATION.
(Romnby Marsh and District Guild.)
On Saturday, April 13,1935, in Two Hours and Fifty-Five Minutes,
At the Chdrch op St. Martin,
A PEAL OF BOB MINOR, 6040 CHANGES;
Seven extents, each called differently. Tenor 14 cwt.
Frederick Wanstall 4
Edward S. Rock.
Percy Page
Conducted by P. Page.
First peal as conductor.
WEST DEEPING, LINCOLNSHIRE.
THE LINCOLN DIOCESAN GUILD.
On Saturday, April 13, 1935, in Three Hours and Five Minutes,
At the Chorch of St. Andrew,
A PEAL OF MINOR, 5040 CHANGES;

Being 720 each of Cambridge Surprise, Kent and Oxford Treblo Bob,
Double Court, Plain Bob, Oxford Bob and Single Court. Tenor 10 cwt.

Dennis Hooker

W alter Sherwood

‘Charles H. Sacre

* First peal.

William Neal .. Treble Thomas A. Cooper
Horace M. D ay . 2 Charles E. Black
W illiam H. W aldron .. 3 Harry Gibbard

Condu.cted by H. M. Day.

Rung half-muffled in memory of Thomas Henson, for many years
sexton and ringer at this church, who was interred on Thursday,

April 1ith.
SHORNE, KENT.
THE KENT COUNTY ASSOCIATION.
On Saturday, April 13,1935, in Two Hours and Thirty-Eight Minutes,
At the Chcrch of SS. Peter and Padl,
A PEAL OF BOB MINOR, s040 CHANGES;
Being seven extents, called differently. Tenor 9£ cwt.
-Leelie C. Finch .. Treble | Joseph H. wicks
tCYRIL W. Hammond... 2 James E. Bailey.....
Leslie T.Stacey |George J. Bdtcuer

Conducted by George J. Botcher.

* First peal, f First peal 'inside.” First peal of Minor by all.
Rung as a 21st birthday compliment to Miss M. Butcher, sister of the
tenor ringer.

HANDBELL PEAL.
SURFLEET, LINCOLNSHIRE.
THE LINCOLN DIOCESAN GUILD.
On Tuesday, April 9, 1935, in Two Hours and Thirty-Four Minutes,
At Glyn Gaeth.
A PEAL OF BOB MAJOR, s040 CHANCES;

Size 13 in E.
John Thomas ... 1-2 j*Fred W igmore ... 5-6
Ropert Richardson...... 3-4 | Rev.B.H.Tyrwhitt Drake 7-8

Composed by F A. Holden. Conducted by Ropert Richardson.
* First peal of Major “in hand.

ANOTHER GOLDEN WEDDING.
MR. AND MRS. EDWIN SHEPHERD, OF EXETER.

Mr. and Mrs. Edwin Shepherd, of 14, Egerton Park Road, Exeter,
who were married on Easter Monday, 1885, celebrated their golden
wedding on April eth.

Mr. Shepherd is one of the oldest members of the Devonshire Guild,
and few, If any, have rendered it greater service. He was elected a
member on June 6th, 1879, and his Ionﬁ and valued association with the
Guild was recognised in 1932, when he was elected a vice-president.
He has to his credit the highest number of peals rung by any local
member of the Guild, namely, 116, of which he has conducted 48.

He has been a Sunday service ringer at St. Sidwell's Church for the
long period of 57 years, and churchwarden there for eleven years—
a lifetime of devoted service.

Mr. Shepherd has bheen a member of the Ancient Society of College
Youths for half a century.

TO ARCHITECTS AND CHURCH AUTHORITIES

CHURCH
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MIDDLESEX COUNTY ASSOCIATION.
USEFUL WORK AT DALSTON MEETING.

North and East District members of tho Middlesex County Associa-
tion and Loudon Diocesan Guild met at St. Mark’'s Church, Dalston,
on Saturday last, when a very enjoyable and useful meeting was
held. Divine service at five o'clock was followed by tea and the usual
business meeting. Mr. W. H. Oram (hon. treasurer) occupiod tho
chair. Seven new members wero elected, and Harrow Weald selected
for the next meeting of the district, on May 25th. Tho bells at this
church have recently been augmonted to eight by Messrs. Taylor and

0.

The Hon. Secretary (Mr. C. T. Coles) drew the attention of mem-
bers to the Jubilee celebrations, and urged them to do their utmost
to ring the bells for that memorable occasion. It should be possible
to obtain permission to ring peals at quite a number of churches, but
even if that were not possible, endeavour should be made to do some
ringhing in_commcftioration of the Jubilee.

The business meeting closed with tho usual votes of thanks, pro-
posed by the chairman and carried with applause.

A great deal of good work was done in ringing practice during the
afternoon and evening, the District Master (Mr. A. W. Coles?] seeing
that, all present had as much opportunity to ring as they wished for.
Some Surprise ringers, at any rate, can appreciate the fact that there
are ringers Who do not yet asBire to the highest degrees in ringing,
and although it would have beou possible at this meeting to ring
almost any well-known Surprise method, most of the ringing dono
was in the more elementary methods.

During the evening a visit was made to the belfry by the Vicar
(Rev. J. O. Vince&, who had just returned from a visit to Scotland,
and who welcomed the ringers present. He quickly noticed the ab-
sence of Mr. William Pye, and on being informed of the death of
that great ringer expressed his sincere sympathy with members of the
association.

SALISBURY DIOCESAN GUILD.
DEVIZES AND SALISBURY BRANCHES.

A combined meeting of the Devizes and Salisburi/ Branches was held
at lleytesbury on Saturday, April 6th. The bells, an excellent ring
of six, with tenor 20 cwt. in E, wero made %ood use of during after-
noon and evenlng. The Guild service was held in the beautiful old
church, conducted by the Vicar, the Rev. J. G. L. Anderson, with Mr.
Targctt accompanying. The Vicar delivered a iliort address, taking
his text from the lesson, Ephesians iv. 7.

Tea was served in the Raymond Hall, to which 54 sat down.
Amongst those present were the Master of the Guild (Rev. R. H.
Gundry), Rsv F. LI. Edwards (hon. secretary), Mr. F. Green (as-
sistant’ hon. secretary), Mr. E. G. Caple and Mr. F. W. Romains
(chairman and secretary, Salisbury Branch), Mr. E. F. White and

Mr. W. C. West (chairman and secretary. Devizes Branch), Mr. H.
J. Ralph (secretary, North Dorset Branch), Mr. A. Taylor (secretary,
Mr. W. B. Kynaston (secretary, Swindon

Marlborougih Branch),
Brunch, Gloucester and Bristol), Mr. D. G. Taylor (llminster), Miss
Hastie, Miss Foulk, Miss Boon, Mr. E. T. P. Field, Mr. T. B. Hollo-
way, Mr. S. R. Roper, and others from various towers of the Salis-
bur% and Devizes Branches.

The Master of the Guild presided at tile short meeting held after
the tea. He welcomed those who had mude the journey from afar,
and thanked all for attending and making the meeting such a success.
Be struck a sad note in mentioning the passing of Mr. J. Andrews, of
Trowbridge tower, and Mr. W. vae, who was a life member.

The Rev. F. LI. Edwards, in a few words before Ieavinfg, stated that
the forthcoming Jubilee was an excellent opportunity for ringers to
join in the celebrations, and suggested that besides rinﬁing on their
own bells they should visit towers where there were three or more
bells, which may be silent for want of regular ringers, and awaken
inter%st in those parishes. Nothing but good could result from such
an_effort.

There being no business to transact, the Chairman voiced votes of
thanks to all concerned, Mr. White seconding, and to this the Vicar
replied, saying all ringers would find a welcome in his tower.

urin? the. evening Sutton Vesy bells were available, and other
friends from Mere and Sf-ourton joined the party. Methods rung in-
cluded Cambridge and London Surprise inor, Oxford and Kent
Treble Bob and Plain Bob Minor, Stedman and Grandsire Doubles.
Rounds were also rung at intervals for those who wished, ringing con-
tinuing until 8.30 at both towers.

JOHN WARNER & SONS

BELL CONSULTANTS.

LTD.

Canada house,

LONDON, w.c2

NORFOLK STREET,
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THE CENTRAL COUNCIL.

AGENDA FOR THE SHREWSBURY MEETING.

The third session of the fifteenth Council (43rd annual
meeting) will be held in the Council Chamber, Shrews-
bury Castle’, Shrewsbury, on Whitsun Tuesday, lith
June, 1935, at 11 o’'clock precisely.

The morning- session will be adjourned at 1 p.m., and
the afternoon session will commence at 2.30 p.m.

AGENDA

1. Report of the hon. secretary as to membership, and payment of
subscriptions.

2. Election of honorary members.

The following retire and are eligible for re-election: Messrs.
W. A. Cave and A. Walker.

Presentation of new members to the president.

Apologies for absence.

Loss of members through death.

Minutes of the last meeting.

Report of the hon. librarian.

Statement of accounts.

Report of the trustees of the Carter Ringing Machine. (Trustees,
Messrs. E. Alex. Young and A. A. Hughes.)

10. To receive, discuss and, if thought fit, to adopt the reports of
tho following committees;

To pass such resolutions as may be necessary on matters
arising out of tho reports;
To_aléelr the constitution of the committees if considered de-
sirable:
(a) Standing Committee.
(b) Peal Collection.

(Rule 11.)

©® N A

(c) Methods.
(d) Peals Analysis and Records.
(e) Towers and Belfries.

(f) Literature, Press and Broadcasting.
11. Alteration of Rules. Constitution of the Council.
To amend Section 2 of Rule 2 by deletinﬂ the word *fifteen’
and substituting the word ‘twenty.” The rule to read: ‘' Of

honorary members, not exceeding twenty in number elected
by the Council.’

Proposed by Mr. E. H. Lewis, seconded by Mr. G. W.
Fletcher.

MOTIONS.

12. That an address be presented by the Council to the diocesan
Bishops, requesting them to take measures to ensure that the designs
prepared for churches to servo new centres of population shall include
due provision for the ultimate erection of substantial towers to ac-
commodate peals of bells properly hung for ringin?, at such points
as to place every dqroup of bouses within hearing of a peal of bells;
at the same time irectinfg their Lordships’ attention to the fact that
all cause of annoyance from tho sound of bells can be effectually
eliminated, if architects’ designs conform to the recommendations of
the Tower and Belfries Committee.

Proposed by the Rev. F. LI. Edwards; seconded by Mr. C. H.
lennings.

13. That, in view of the extension of the practice of splicing
methods thia Council resolves that the term *Spliced ' shall be ap-
plied only to those peals in which not more than the length of a
normal course in any method is rung in any part of the peal with-
out a change to another method being made. Peals which contain
more than one method, but which do not conform to the foregoing,
shall be called ' Combined ' peals.

That as splicing involves changes of methods at plained, bobbed
and single leads alike, it is further resolved that peals in which the
change of method is produced by a special call, such as in peals of
Kont and Oxford Treble Bob, shall not be called ‘Spliced ' peals.

These decisions shall apply to peals on all number of bells.

Proposed by Mr. C. T. Coles; seconded by Mr. E. C. S. Turner.

14. That in the opinion of tho Council it is desirable that a record
should be made of old and valuable peal boards, and that a commit-
tee be appointed to prepare this record.

Proposed by Mr. W. Il. Hollier; seconded by Mr. C. T. Coles.

15. That to ensure the accuracy of the Council's peals analysis and
as a matter of general interest, those responsible for sending the re-
ports of peals for publication in the ringing Press are urged to de-
note all tfirst peals’' and ‘ first peals in the method ' both by any of
the ringers and ‘as conductor.’

Proposod by Mr. J. S. Goldsmith; seconded by Mr. G. L. Grover.
(Continued at foot of next column.)
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ST. MARTIN'S GUILD, BIRMINGHAM.
FURTHER PRESENTATION TO MR. ALBERT WALKER.

A quarterl{} meeting of St. Martin’s Guild for the Diocese of Birm-
ingham was held oil Saturday, April eth, at the ancient Parish Church
of Yardley, Birmingham. The tower contains a light peal of six bells,
and these were kept going in various methods during the afternoon
and evening.

The Vicar of Yardley (Canon E. L. Cochrane) conducted the Guild's
form of service and gave a most interesting address on the history of
the church and bells. The first church was build about the tenth
century, but most of this has gone, the old church being rebuilt and
enlarged during the last century, but the bells are the original ones,
some dating back to 1638 and bearing some interesting inscriptions.

Tea was partaken of in the Church Hall, and this was followed by
the business meeting, at which the Master, Mr. Alderman J. S.
Pritchett, M.A., presided.

The Secretary, Mr. T. H. Reeves, referred to a letter he had re-
ceived from the Vicar of Aston regarding the restoration of Aston
Church bells. Messrs. John Taylor and Co., of Loughborough, had
the work in hand, but a further £200 was still needed. St. Martin’s
Guild had very pleasant recollections of meetings at Aston Church for
many vyears past, and no doubt when the bells were restored the
same happy relations would be renewed. He therefore proposed that
the sum of £5 5s. from the Guild's funds be sent as a donation to
the restoration fund.—This was seconded by the Master, supported by
the Ringing Master (Mr. F. E. Haynes) and carried unanimously.

Some further discussion took place, and it was resolved to make
a pol(ljection at that meeting, which resulted in a further £7 10s. being
raised.

The Master then mado a further presentation to Mr. Albert Walker,
the late Ringir\]/g Master. In addition to the grandmother clock pre-
sented to Mr. Walker, and the gold wristlet watch presented to Mrs.
W alker at the recent Henry Johnson Dinner, there was still, he said, some
money left over, and they had, therefore, decided to present Mr.
Walker with a gold wristlet watch too. He had pleasure in present-
it to him, and expressed the hope that he would live long to wear
it.—Mr. Walker expressed his surprise and pleasure at receiving this
further gift, and again thanked his many friends who had contri-
buted towards these valuable gifts. He also thanked the secretary
for all the work he must have put in to make these gifts possible.

The Secretary also mentioned a further letter he had received from
Mr. Vice-President A. Paddon Smith, writing from Bulawayo, in
which lie sent kindly greetings to all friends, and stated he expected
to be back in England about the middle of May.

Mr. W. A. Clark, of Moseley, was elected an hon. member of the
Guild, on the proposition of the secretary, seconded by Mr. A. Walker.

Mr. G. Swann proposed, and Mr. W. C. Dowding seconded, and it
was unanimously agreed, to hold the next quarterl?/ meeting at
Solihull on Saturday, July etli, and the bi-quarterly meeting at
Erdington Parish Church ot Saturday, May lith.

A vote of thanks to tho Vicar for the use of the bells and his in-
teresting address at the service, also to Mrs. Cochrane and her friends

in serving tea, and to Mr. A. T. Scrivens for having the bells ready,
concluded the business.
(Continued from previous column.)
16. That a record be prepared of past members of the Council

giving a short account of their work, and, where possible, a photo-
graph, and that a committee be appointed to undertake this work.
Proposed by Mrs. E. K. Fletcher; seconded by Mr. G. R. Pye.
17.  Other business, if any.
GEORGE W. FLETCHER,
Hon. Secretary.
45, Walsingham Road,
Enfield, Middlesex.

HOTEL ARRANGEMENTS.
y A full programme of the arrangements will be published at an early
ate.

Hotel accommodation.—Members are requested to make their ar-
rangements at once, as Shrewsbury is usually very busy at Whitsun-
tide. Terms have been obtained, and are shown below as follows;
a Bed and breakfast, b from Monday dinner to Wednesday break-
fast, ¢ from Sunday dinner to Wednesday breakfast, d from Saturday
dinner to Wednesday breakfast.

Crown Hotel (headquarters): a 10s., b £1 5s., ¢ £2, d £2 15s.

Raven Hotel: a from Ils. ed., b £1 10s. 6d., ¢ £2 Ils. 6d., d £3
12s. 6d.

Lion Hotel: Only accommodation available is four double rooms,
four twin bedded rooms, and four rooms, each to take three per-
éons: a double 18s. ed., single sharing rooms 9s. 6d., ¢ £1 15s.,

£2 5s.

George Hotel: a 8s. and 15s., b £1 10s., ¢ £2 2s.,, d £2 10s.

Unicorn Hotel: a 8s. and 14s., b £1 5s., ¢ £1 15s., d £2 5s.

Britannia Hotel: Dinner, bed and breakfast, single 10s. ed., double
18s.; lunch 2s. 6d.

Please mention the Council when booking rooms.
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A CELEBRATED SAXON TOWER.

BELLS OF EARLS BARTON.
Barron Trust Adds Two Trebles.

One of the most perfect specimens of a Saxon tower in
this country is at Earls Barton, Northants. It was built
in the first half of the eleventh century and still stands,
four square to the winds of heaven. A fine example of
strength and stability, which, as the Bishop of Peter-
borough pointed out in an address at the dedication of the
restored and augmented bells, gives a sense of peace in
an age of restlessness.

For eight hundred years this tower has stood and
doubtless has contained bells throughout the whole of
this time, for at the period when it was erected rings of
bells were already known in our church towers, and the
dimensions of this one arc such that, in the opinion of

archaeologists, its original object was to contain bells.

There was a crowded congregation oil Sunday evening, March 3lst,
when the service of thanksgiving was held for the restoration of the
tower and peal of bells.

After the processional hymn shortened evensong was conducted by
the Vicar (Rev. L. A. Ewart). During the singing of Hymn No. 166
the Right Rev. the Lord Bishop of Peterborough (Dr. Blagden), at-
tended by the cross bearer, servers, the Vicar (Rev. L. A. Ewart),
churchwardens, representatives of the Parish and Church Councils, re-
presentatives of the donors and bell founders (Messrs. John Taylor and
Co.), proceeded to the tower, where prayers were offered and the
BishoE dedicated the bells and frame. A course of Stedman Triples
was then rung by eight members of the Peterborough Diocesan Guild:
W. Perkins 1, F. Wilford 2, A. Bigley 3, G. Basford 4, H. Chambers
5, 1. Shatford 6, A. Plowman 7, J. Ward 8, during which the pro-
cession returned to the church.

The Bishop, in hia sermon, said it was not necessary for him to
recall to their minds the special reasons they had for that very
eolemn act of thanksgiving; they knew better than he could tell them.
The complete restoration was not iet done, and they could be thank-
ful that uB to the moment the work, had been carried out without any
suffering being causcd to the w'orkers. Sometimes they forgot how
dangerous the work of restoration was to those men who actually
undertook it, and he sincerely hoped it would be finished without any
pain or distress being caused to anyone.

Bellringing, he continued, was a special feature of English life, and
the bells were connected with the aspects of their church life, the
things which meant most to them. This noble art, in w'hich English
skill had reached the highest pioint, was closeiy connected with the
work of the Church. Our church towers, he said, are the open wit-
nesses of the Church, and their resounding message w*as, *This is
the House of God." The res?onsibility of those who rang the bells
was as great as the responsibility which rested on the shoulders of the
priest. ~The ringers had an example to set. It would not be a
greatly noble act for ringers to take part ia the ringing and then not
to participate in the service. A great responsibility also rested on
those who heard the bells.

The Bishop went on to say that Earls Barton tow*er struck him for
its most extraordinary genuineness. It is a solemn and Kkindly re-
minder that what it represents is the very thing we are needing in
this changing, difficult world. It is strong, stately and simple, and
gave one a sense of peace. One of the bells bore the inscription,
"Beati Pacifici’ L‘Blessed are the peacemakers’). That was, indeed,
a motto for a Christian life.

After the service two courses of Stedman Triples were rung whilst
the congregation were leaving the church. The bells were then open
for about one hour, when most of the rin?ers present (about 24) en-
joyed a pull on what is now a fine peal of eight, with tenor approxi-
mately 12 cwt.

The work has been carried out by Messrs. John Taylor and Co.,
and the gathering of ringers present included Mr. F. Wilford (Master
of the Peterborough Guild) and Mr. J. H. Shepherd, of Swindon, who
turned u? on his bicycle as usual. All the standard methods were
rung, including Double Norwich, SuFerIative and Cambridge, and the
ringers were unanimous that a really first-class job had been made.
The sound of the bells is ideal both In the ringing chamber and out-
side, the belfry sound openings having been treated most success-
fully, with the result that in the village the bells sound beautifully
soft, yet on the testimony of'those who live two or three miles away
the bells are heard much clearer at a distance.

According to North's *Church Bells of Northamptonshire* the fol-
lowing are the inscriptions on the original six bells:—

1.—Beati Pacifigi. Robert Whitworth Senr. Benefr. 1720.

2.—Si Devs Pro Nobis Qvis Contra Nos 1720-

3.—Edward Arnold St. Neots Fecit 1775. John Smit & William

Kemshead Churchwardens.
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4—1.H.S. Rex ludeorum Fili Dei Miserere Mei 1720.
5.—Vera Judicet Ecclesia Fixus Adversa Sperno 1720. John James:
Henry Wine Church*wardens: Henry Penn Founder.
6.—To the Church the Liveing | do call & to the Grave | summon
all. Jno. Warren & John Smith C-Ws 1761. Thos. Eayre.
Vincent Barker Benefaclor.
There was a tradition that Vincent Barker, who was a farmer at
Earls Barton, did not give the sixth bell, but was instrumental in
getting it recast, and put his name on as a benefactor. This gave

THE FINE OLD SAXON TOWER OF EARLS BARTON CHURCH.

offence to others, who insisted oil the name being erased. The
founder, however, declared that to be impossible, without danger of
cracking or spoiling the bell. So it remained.

On the new treble bells are the inscriptions:—

‘The gift of the Barron Bell Trust in the year of the King's Silver
Jubilee, 1935. Louis A. Ewart, Vicar.'

4To the glory of God the two bells were added, completing the peal
in the year of the King's Silver Jubilee, 1935

Formerlg the Curfew was rung at this church daily at 8 p.hi., the
Pancake bell on Shrove Tuesday, and the Ieaninﬁ bell at 8 a.m.
during harvest.. Another old custom was that, when thero was a
funeral, the'tenor bell was tolled for a few minutes about an hour
before the intcrmettt to summon the bearers.
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RINGERS' MEETING,

By kind permission of the Vicar, a special meeting of the Peter-
borough Guild was held at Earls Barton on Saturday, April 6th, ar-
ranged by the Wellingborough District. About 60 ringers from a wido
area took tho opportunity of ringing and hearing the now very fine
peal of bells. ) ) )

The Guild form of sorvicc was held in the beautiful old church,
conducted by the Vicar, who also gavo an interesting address, taking
as his text Exodus xxviii. 23. The lesson was read by the branch
president, Rev. Bagsliaw, R.D., Vicar of Finedon.

A collection amounting to £1 Os. 4d. was taken towards the tower
fund.

Mr. J. S. Line, an Ecton ringer, officiated at the organ.

After tho service an excellent tea was enjoyed. It bad bheen pre-
pared by the local ringers, their wives, and lady friends, and was
served in tho Church Hall.

There was 110 routine business, but mention was made of the recent
death of Mr. W. Pye and Mr. W. Farey, the former a well-known
non-resident member and the latter one of the old Northampton
ringers.—The members stood a few moments in silence as a token of
respect

Ap vote of thanks to all responsible for the success of the meeting,
especially to the Vicar for the permission to ring and for his interest-
ing address, was proposed hy the Rev. iiagshaw.—The Branch Secre-
tary, in seconding, said at Earls Barton they had now a peal of bells
to be proud of, and he hoped they would persevere and strike them
well, so that they would ho heard to the best advantage. He wished
the ringers success and happiness in thoir work for the Church.

The Rev. L. A. Ewart, replying, said how pleased he was to welcome
the Guild to Earls Barton. With reference to the work of restora-
tion, he remarked that a lot of bard work was needed to undertake
so great a task, but he was glad to say that they were getting along
happily towards the completion. A letter of praise and appreciation
with reference to tho dedication service was read, which the Vicar
had received from the late secretary of the district, Mr. F. Barber.

Mr. J. P. Fidler replied on behalf of the bell founders.

On returning to the belfry further ringing was done. It ranged
during the day from rounds to a woll-struck course of Yorkshire Sur-
prise Major.

Ringers were present from Loughborough, Luton, Rothwell, Des-
borough, Wellinghorough, Ketterinfg, Burton Latimer, Finedon, Irth-
lingborough, Higham Ferrers, Bedford, Ecton, Northampton, Wollas-
ton, Warkton, Over, Keystone, and the local ringers, and included the
hon. general secretary, Mr. R. G. Black.

(Oontinued in next column.)
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FIRST QUARTER-PEALS.

At Taunton; for service ow Sunday, March 3rd, at St. James'
Church, a quarter-peal of Stedman Triples: H. Floyd 1, H. H. Walker
2, A. A. Walker 3, A. H. Reed 4, W. H. Poole 5, W. G. Gigg 6, J.
Hunt (conductor) 7, H. Bungay 8. First quarter-peal of Stcdman by
ringers of 1 and 2.

At St. Martin’s Church, Desford, Leicestershire, on Sunday, March
17th, for evensong, a quarter-peal of Grandsire Doubles: J.” Preston

G. Dale 2, C. Archer (conductor) 3, S. Smith 4, S. Munton 5,
H. Archer 6. This was the first quarter-peal for the ringers of treble
and 2nd. With the exception of the ringer of the 5th, all are mem-
bers of the local band. ) . .

At Newport, Monmouthshire, on Sunday, March 17tli, for evening
service, at the-pro-Cathedral Church of St. Woolos, a quarter-peal of
Grandsiro Caters é1,260 changes): Edgar Howlett (first unarter-pcaI,
aged 13 years) 1, C. Greedy 2, F Crabbe 3, J. Bullen 4, T. Butler 5,
F. Greedy 6, F. Rowsell (first quartcr-peal of Caters as conductor) 7,
W. Phillips 8, F. Atwell 9, A. Thomas 10.

At. St. Peter’s Church, Petersfield, Hampshire, on March 25th, a
quartcr-peal of Grandsire Triples: P. L. Wright 1, R. A. Reed (first
guarter—pcal “inside ') 2, A. J. Garrett 3, C. S. West 4, C. E. Bassett
, R. C. H. Connolly (first quarter-peal in the method) 6, G. Williams
(conductor) 7, R. A. Budd s.

At Eythorne, Kent, o1 Thursdafv, March 21st, at St. Peter’'s Church,
a quarter-peal of Grandsire Doufcles: E. T Ellender 1, C. Turner 2.
L. Leach 3, E. J. Walker 4, F. A. Rye (conductor) 5. Tho ringer of
the 3rd belongs to the Devonshire regiment, and has just returned
from India. He is now stationed at Dover. It was liis first quarter-
pcal, also first quartcr-peal as conductor by F. A. Rye, of Walmer.

At Whitchurch Canonicorum, Dorset, oi Saturday, March 23rd, a
quarter-peal of Grandsire Triples: L. Glvde (first quarter-peal) 1, J.
E. Philbrick 2, G. H. Whitcmore 3, E. F. Brooks 4, T. Gunnin? 5,
A. Winter 6, Rev. C. C. Cox (conductor) 7, C. W. H. Powell 8.
Specially arran(};]ed for a combined band from Beaminster and Lyme
Regis towers, the ringers of 1, 4,'5 and 6 belonging to Bcaminster.

(Continued from previous column.)

The work which lias just been carried out consists of the addition
of two trebles, the gift of the Barron Bell Trust, to increase the old
Beal of six to the full octave. The former 5th (the present 7th) has

een recast and increased in weight; the old frame lias been replaced
by a strong and massive frame of English oak, on a double set of
English oak foundation heams: two new floors have been constructed
and louvres to protect the bells and frame from bad weather have
been placed in the window openings.

John Taylor & Co

LOUGHBOROUGH*

THE

LEADING BELL FOUNDERS
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MEARS &
STAINBANK.

IBellfounders St
BcllHangers,

32 & 34, WHITECHAPEL ROAD,
LONDON, E.1.

Telephone Blshopsgate 884B

Foundry
Established
A.D. 1B70

(12th year
of reign of
Elizabeth).

SHERBORNE ABBEY RECA8T TENOR.
W cwt. Oqr. 5 Ib.

ESTIMATES SUBMITTED

for

Recasting, Retuning and Rehanging

HANDBELLS

in sets of any number,

BELL ROPES MUFFLES, &c.
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BELFRY GOSSIP.

The rings of eight of Crawley, Sussex, and Margate, Kent, are being
rehunﬂ on ball bearings by Messrs. Taylor and Co., of Loughborou%h,
and the ring of six of Buritou, Hants, is now at Loughborough for
retuning and rehanging in 1 new framo

Messrs. Taylor and Co. havo also HUSt completed tho rehan%incg in the
old oak framo of tho heavy ring of eight of Crediton Paris hurch,
Devon. Ball bearings havo been fitted throughout, and the ringers
report tho *go ' of tho bells is now excellent.

Messrs. J. Taylor and Co. have been entrusted with the order to
recast the six bells at Ponarth, near Cardiff, and add two more to
complete the octave.

Tiro pool at Rushmere, Suffolk, recorded last week, was the first
peal in seven methods on tho hells. Tho peal at Great Bardfield was
rung on Thursday, March 28th, and not Saturday, March 30th, as
mentioned in the report.

Of handbells at inns, we learn of another example, in addition to
those mentioned last week. There is a Bet at the George, Wraysbury,
Bucks, which have hung in the saloon bar ‘as long as anyone can re-
member.” The proprietor of the George is a son of Mr. J. W. Jones,

of Newport. Rintg_ers passin? that way will doubtless be interested to
call and inspect tlio handbells.

f'f-tr'thhpeaI at Beaconsfield o1t March 30th was Miss Dorothy Fletcher’s
iftieth.

Tile Premier of N.S\W. and his wifo visited the church the same
afternoon, and several members of the peal band had tho privilege of

a brief chat with them before the former went on to the Shakespeare
country.

The first peal on Beaconsfield bells was rung 50 years ago.
survivor of that band is the 'evergreen ' veteran, Mr.
who rang the 4th in the peal the other day.

The ring of ten, 2 ton tenor, of St. Mary's Cathedral, Edinburgh,
is shortly to be removed to the Loughborough Foundry, where the

bells are to bo equipped with new fittiugs throughout, including iron
headstocks, etc.

Mr. J. L. Murray, the veteran Melbourne ringer, who took part
in the peal of Grandsire Cinques during the English tourists’ visit,
has had a rather serious illness, but, according to latest advices, is
recovering. Mr. J. W. Spencer, who also took part in tho peal, as
well as in the peal of Bob Royal, has been hors de combat, suffering
from a broken wrist. We wish them both a speedy recovery.

The Sussex County Association, which celebrates its jubilee this
year, having been established in 1885, will hold a commemorative
gathering in Brighton, in conjunction with the annual meeting, on
Saturday, May 25th. There are to he a reception, dinner and concert
in the evening.

Peals of Grandsiro Doubles, consisting of 42 different six-scores,
with all the bells in turn acting as the “whole hunt,” wcro rung for
the Worcestershire and Districts Association at Suckley, Worcs, on
March 12th, 1932, conducted by S. T. Holt, and at Hanley Castle,
Worcs, on December 27th, 1934, conducted by C. Camm.

Stedman, St. Bartholomew, St. Vcdast, Reading, and Place Bob
Doubles were rung at Buekhorn Weston, Dorset, Church, by mem-
bers of the Salisbury Guild, including Mr. Bert Cox, of tho local
band, on March 30th, to celebrate the installation of electric light in
the church, the gift of a parishioner, Mrs. Vale.

At the annual meeting of the Midland Counties Association, on
Easter Monday, at Burton-on-Trent, the bells of Barton-under-Need-
wood will be available from 12 o'clock until 3.30 (not later). Buses
leave Burton at 11.35, and 12.35 and frequently during the day.

The onlr
. H. Fussell,

SURPRISE RINGERS NOT TO BLAME.

To the Editor.

Dear Sir,—In your last issue we got another letter from Mr. P.
Amos, in which, ‘as indeed 111 all his letters, lie has a ?rouse about
the ‘selfish ' Surprise ringer. Now | know several excellent Surprise
ringers in his district who, | am sure, aro not of the type he would
have us believe them to bo, but if a man is not capable of getting
beyond the Plain Bob stage that is his misfortune, and the rest can-
not bo expected to refrain from Surprise ringiing to please just one
individual. Any one of our Surprise bhand will be willing to stand in
a peal of Plain Bob for a first pealer, and | am sure the Northamp-
ton and district ringers would do tho same. WM. DAY

Market Deeping.

RINGERS SERVICES.

We havo received a lengthy letter from A. T. Milton in reIpIK to
correspondence on the above subject, but regret we cannot publish it
as the columns of ' Tho Ringing World ' are not open to a theological
discussion.
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THE NEW ZEALAND TOUR.

PART III.
*WELLINGTON'S BELLS UNRUNG.

St. Peter’s Church, Wellington, which we had time to look at during
our day there, is erected entirely of timber framing and wooden
sheathing. It stands on elevated ground in Willis Street, a prominent
thoroughfare, and its tall spire can be seen on leaving the liarbout.
The Vicar is the Ven. Archibald Bullock, A.K.C., from Derbyshire,
and he has a difficult task to keep tho church and vicarage free of
debt. In a recent appeal he stated that practically £1 a day was
needed to meet the rates, insurance and interest charges, and *we
cannot escape them.*

At our visit wc were %adlk//l shown over the church and the belfry
by the verger, Mr. F. . Moss, and were privileged to chime the
bells round with the apparatus. The church has recently received a
visit by Dr. Nicholson, late organist of Westminster Abbey, who was
making a tour of the Empire on behalf of the School of English
Church Music. He passed on to the WeIIin?ton war memorial, where
a recital was given to welcome him. It will be remembered that Dr.
Nicholson tested these bells, before they left England, on behalf of
the New Zealand Carillon Society.

THE RINGING WORLD.
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Richards w*as born in 1833 and died in 1901. For 22 years he was
Farish clerk and bellringer here, and held the rank of sergeant in the
ocal volunteer corps. Before leaving England he had rung one peal
at Bethnal Green with the College Youths in 1871. Messrs. Haley,
Wood, etc., were in the team, and a peal card from his friend Hay-
worth and his own portrait are in the tower. His son, Mr.
Richards, wlRs churchwarden during the war. One of the most in-
teresting documents in the parish is an ancient framed list of the
original subscribers—old settlers of 1848—and the sums they gave,
4To the building fund of a new church ' on ‘Te Arowa Platz.’

. TOURISTS ARRIVE AT SOUTH ISLAND. ]

Again it was a most pleasant passage on board the ‘Rangatira’
from Wellington to Littleton Harbour. After a glorious sunset, the
new crescent moon went down beyond the North Island as we sailed
down the South Island towards Littleton.

Early morning approach revealed a splendid range of rocky moun-
tainous scenery, surrounding three parts of the bay and its town, and
on the boat deck and train platform one wondered how wk were ever
going to leave the place. A mile or two of tunnelling carried us out
on to the Canterbury plains, and we arrived at Christchurch Station
on Tuesday, December 1lth, somewhat resembling a soccer football
eleven. Pressmen were answered as politely as possible, and the

AN ANGLO-NEW ZEALAND GROUP AT CHRISTCHURCH.

Photograph taken at Christchurch railway station on the arrival of the English party.
Martin, S. H. Barnett, C. Charge,

Fussell, Roberts, W. Linter, J. S. Wilde, G.

St. Peter’'s Church was consecrated on December 1lth, 1879. The
‘jells, by Warner and Son, London, arc hung in an oak frame and all
ittings, complete for ringing proper. The total cost was £700, of
which £400 was raised by parochial subscriptions. The tenor weighs
35 cwt. 2 gr. 27 Ib. in F, and the total weight of the octave 65 cwt.
2 qr. .

On the belfry door we found a time-worn notice which seemed out
of place when the verger told us they had not been rung for five
years: *Do not touch the ropes, as the bells are set.” It appears that
a well-intentioned attempt was made to strengthen the tower by
spending £20 on the foundations to the main beams that support it,
and when the bells were raised for ringing afterwards the whole
People swayed too much to let the men continue. A good set of
Warner handbells arc here, once used by the fine old tune-playing
I*and, of whom Mr. T. Richards was Ringin? Master, and their
photograph hangs in tho belfry, but they wero all disbanded long ago.

Left to right: Messrs. W. H.
R. Maude, J. Hardcastle, Shaw and G.

Claydon.
photographer given an amiable smile before we harked away in a bevy
of motor-cars to our respective lodgings, under the care of Mr. S. H

Barnett. Later in the morning there was a meeting at the Cathedral,
and the tourists were given a hearty reception and a copj of the
secretary’s full programme of the week’s ‘doings.*

The Cathedral and its precincts form one side of a large square, the
other sides having bold public buildings and offices, and here, too, all
tramcars pass round in going to and from all quarters of the city.
iWe made this a regular place for morning, assembly to suit the
separate billets of the party, and daily meal times were agreed on at
8, 12 and 6 o'clock, our recent seafaring hours.

Tower ringing began at 7 p.m., when the Anglo-New Zealand
fraternity assembled in force, some 20 ringers responding. Wo were
heartily 'welcomed by Dean Julius, who kindly gave us the usual
belfry prarer. The ‘feelers ' consisted of touches of Bob Major, Sted-
man Triples and a few courses of Grandsire Caters. Mr. George
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Claydon had done all he could to have the bells in good order, but
we found one or two of them heavy going, and the noise in the ring-
in% room too much for comfortable ringing or conducting.

couple, of hours’ decent work was done, the handbells sampled
and the momentous question of a ‘peal attempt' agreed on before
closing the practice. i ) )

The city of Christchurch is well luid out, with broad reclaugular
thoroughfares, some of which have a stream of water constantly flow-
ing along the channels, like the streets of Wells, Somerset. The city
stands upon a tableland, some nnles in extent, lying between the sea
coast and *he mountain ranges. It is divided by the river Avon, with
its banks of lawn and numerous weeping willow trees that form a
graceful feature not to be e%ualled anywhere. The general appearance
of the whole town is very nglish, and we were not long in making
ourselves, generally speaking, "at home.

The day following our arrival was devoted to sight-seeing, corre-
spondence, etc. On the north side of the square wo made a iringers’
den * on the ground floor of the principal hotel, and discovered, an
older 1den’ in the basement, once fitted up with a bar, where the
early members of the New Zealand Ringing Society used to gather
together 40 to 50 years ago. It is no longer in use. | may mention
that all licensed houses close at 6 p.m. ‘down under,’ but this regula-
tion did not affect us. Papanui, the home of Mr. Barnett, was our
venuo for “lie afternoon, and Opawa, by kind invitation of Mr.
and Mrs. A. W. Minsou, at their private residence in Vincent Place,
for the evening. Mr. Minson's two sons are Cathedral ringers, and,
with about 16 guests present, a most enjoyable time was spent for
four hours. Handbells in tunes and changes brought"ous6 local talent
in the latter direction. After supper the music room developed more
local talent in song and harmony, with Mr. Claydon at the putno, and
the last tramcar for the city was boarded at 11.30 p.m. Hero we wore
introduced to Mrs. Tom Biddle, who graciouslz made a present of her
late hushand's peal book to the Christchurch Society.  His photo-
graph hangs in the belfry now, with a good one of the late Rev. F. E.
Robinson. PAPANUI.

Throughout our tour in Australia and New Zealand we found a
difficulty everywhere in obtaining picture postcards of the various
churches we visited. There is scope for the S.P.O., or some other
society, to encourage correspondence between churchpeople throughout
the commonwealth by means of this popular card. Business will be
restricted, however, If the present prices ill Australia are charged,
viz., 3d. per card and ljd. each for postage.

St. Paul's Church, Papanui, was erected in 1876. It is a wooden
construction, surrounded by a broad churchyard with weli-laid-out
walks and planted with fine trees, typical of the village %raveyards

of England. The Vicar (Rev. W. H. Orwell, L.Th.) and the verger,
M{h 0. J. McKay, met us at the tower on the afternoon of December
12th.

The bells, a Ii%ht ring of five, cast by Warner and Son, London,
1880, are musical, and. like most of the rings of bells in the old
Colonies, have had a chequered caieer. The original peal of five
were lost at sea with the ship that carried them In a terrific storm
off the west coast of Africa. Her cargo having been insured by the
shipping company, another set of bells was provided, which arc those
now in use. The next parochial difficulty was the tower. It was not
strong or large enough for beIIrin?ing, but- the parishioners, eager to
have their bells properly used, pulled it down in 1912. A new tower
and spire were built on a heavy concrete base,-without greatly im-
roving conditions, and we found in ringing our Doubles a strong
ateral movement of the whole framework to pull against, somewhat
resembling a farm wagon crossing a rut in the road.

The Ven. Archdeacon Julius, now Dean of Christchurch and a
good friend of the Cathedral Society and greatly interested in the art
of change ringing, was Vicar when the bells were put up. The ring-
ing room is small and reached by a step ladder and trapdoor, which
the Archdeacon, being a well-built and heavy man, had difficulty in
pushing through. The warden was present, and, possibly doubting
the complaints of the ringers, jokinghly observed, ‘There 'is nothing
in this ringing,” and pulled off the third bell. Light as it was, the
rope caught him upwards and laid him flat on his back on the floor,
where he remained a few moments recovering his breath. There is a
set of 25 handbells, by Warners, in the belfry. They were purchased
bv the former Vicar, the Rev. O'Brien Horc, who was a practical
ringer. When he went away the Paﬁanm men collected £10 in the
parish to keep them for the use of the church.

When the new tower and bells were opened in 1912 the Christ-
church Society, with T. Biddle as conductor, opened them with
method ringing. Mr. Biddle died the following year.

At tho adjoining Vicarage, Mrs. Orwell and the Vicar gave us a
couple of hours' entertainment, with tea, smoke and general conver-
sation. The old handbells were brought from the tower and used in
tunes and changes before we left for Christchurch and after thanks
for the kind hospitality. It may not be out of place if I here repeat
the inscription on the tenor bell at Papanui: 'Wc¢ sing the Lord’s
song in a strange land.'

On Thursday, December 13th, we made a round tour in the morning,
with a visit to Broadcasting House. The afternoon was spent at

(Continued in next column.)
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THE AUSTRALIAN & NEW ZEALAND TOUR
STORY OF THE ‘ ADVENTURE ' IN BOOK
FORM ?

Subscribers Invited.

Many representations have been made to us that
the story of the Australian and New Zealand Ring-
ing Tour—the greatest ‘ adventure ' in bell ringing
that has ever been undertaken and which aroused
remarkable interest among ringers in this country—
should be printed in book form.

The Editor of *The Ringing World ' is prepared
to do this if there is a guarantee of sufficient sale to
cover' the cost.

The book would consist of the articles which have
appeared in our columns, supplemented by further
material and pictures and would be about 100 pages,
Demy 8vo. size, with stiff cover. If a sufficient
number of copies are taken up by subscribers the
book will be put on sale at 2s. post free.

In order that a decision may be come to, ringers
who are prepared to subscribe for the issue are re-
quested to send a postcard to:—

The Editor,
*The Ringing World,
Woking, Surrey.

Tower secretaries can send the number for their

lower.

(Continued from previous column.)

Fendalton. From 7 to 8 p.m. touches were rung at the Cathedral for
the evening service, and all members were happy to receive a few
words of encouragement in their work from the Lord Bishop of Can-
terbury, the Rev. Campbell West-Watson, D.D., and from the Dean
of Christchurch, who had specially climbed to the belfry to welcome
the English ringers. The Dean kindly said the ringers” office befor
ringing began, and gave tho assembly his blessing on departure.

The belfry is a spacious one, well fitted, with a large centre table,
chairs, mats, hat and cloak peqs, and a number of interesting picture’
and two peal tablets on its walls. Everyone will remember the *hour
and the day,” when the bellringers and the Lord Bishop made the roon
a modern sanctuary. Our touches of Grandsire Triples and Cater-
ended at 8 o'clock, wc attended an hour's organ recital by Dr. Brad-
shaw, when the pealing of the organ was a welcome relief to the
*loud speakers’ of the ringing room, and, heard along the nave, wa
soothing to one’s ears.

On Friday morning a visit was paid to Addington. Three private
cars assembled after lunch to take itll our people out sight-seeing.
Mr. White's introductory note was responded to by the Clirisichurci.
representatives of the A.M.P., as happened at Auckland. We did not
]get back until six o'clock, after tea at Sumner Bag with our friends

he New Brighton coast and many suburban beauty spots were
visited, and the Cashmere Hills for a panoramic view of the sea coast.
Many of the houses built on the sides of the rocky hills had fore-
courts or'retalnm% walls covered with masses of flowers, resembling,
ill the distance, brightly coloured mats or carpels hung out for
domestic treatment.

Go-as-you-please was planned for the evening, but a rallying mecssagf
was sent out for united practice at the Cathedral, and a belfry full
of Anglo-New Zealand method ringers resulted. Some interested visitor;
came up to see us, including Mr. and Mrs. Sladcn, who had travelled
with us on the 1 Barrahool ' from London, and taught some of us how
to play New Zealand dominoes, a game requiring more *brains ' than
appeare at first sight.

Tt was hoped that our ranks would be increased by the arrival for
the week-end of Messrs. De Lambert and Lightband and Miss Jutson.
Their official duties, however, kept them up country, much to our re-
gret. Mr. Wright, of Huddersfield, was met during the day, and he
regretted his inabilitg to follow up tho work of the belfry as ho used
to do. Messrs. Rashbrooke, of Colchester, and the brothers Hollobon,
of Eastbourne, may be heard of in future ringing news from New
Zealand.

Shopping and sight-seeing occupiod our morning on Saturday, with
a rest after lunch. The following men made at 5 p.m. an excollent
attempt for a peal of Bob Major, which was lost by the 5th bell
‘setting ' after it had cast its rope in 1 hour and 5 minutes. The
ringers were Messrs. Barnett, Fussell, Linter, Wilde, Chargo, Claydon,
Shaw and Martin. Afterwards, some went to the cinema, others for
o long chat abont tho old ringing days of Christchuroh, and thus
ended a fairly hot day of bright sunshine. W. K. F.
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NUNEATON RINGER'S JUBILEE.
MU. T. \V. CHAPMAN'S LONG SERVICE TO THE PARISH

Mr. T. W. Chapman, who has just completed 50 years’ unbroken
servicc as a ringer at Nuneaton Parish Church, was on Saturday,
April 6th, presented with a 5-valve wireless set and an eight-day
clock at an enjoyable gathering held in the Parish Hall. Prior to the
gresentatlon there was ringing on the bells of the Parish Church from
.30 to 5.30, following which about 60 members of tire Warwickshire
Guild and friends were entertained to tea.

The Vicar (Canon J. L. White, M.A.E presided, supﬁorted by Rev.
J. Rastin (curate) and Messrs. W. E. Lester and G. Hardy (church-
wardens), and heartily -welcomed the president of the Guild (Rev. J.
A. B. Davies, M.A.), who unfortunately had to leave early, but not
before saying a few words regarding the significance of the occasion.

A concert followed the tea, and in an interval between the items
the presentation was made. Mr. James George, as Mr. Chapman’s

oldest friend, spoke of the time
when, anxious to learn change
ringing, he journeyed from
Rugby to Nuneaton, where he
found” Mr. Chapman and the
lato Mr. Argyle very willing to
instruct him. After many jour-
neys and much Rﬂractice, he rang
in"a peal with Mr. Chapman as
conductor on October 29th, 1891.
His last peal at Nuneaton was
rung on Thursday, April 4th,
1935, also with Mr. Chapman to
celebrate the latter’s ringing
jubilee. Mr. Chapman was one
of the nicest men he knew, al-
ways ready and willing to im-
art information, and he wished
r. and Mrs. Chapman many
years of happiness applause).
In presenting the gifts, Canon
White congratulated Mr. Chap-
man on his remarkable achieve-
ment on behalf of the Parish
Church, the Warwickshire Guild

MR. T. W. CHAPMAN. and supporters of bellringing
all over the country. It was
a wonderful record. The presentation was made ill order to put

into concrete form their tribute for a very great service—service
to Nuneaton Parish Church. Not only did they make the presenta-
tion to Mr. Chapman for his ringing,” but also in appreciation of a
good man. Not every good ringer was a good churchman. Some for-
got there were other parts of the church besides the belfry. For a
number of years Mr. Chapman had been a sidesman—a sidesman
who, lie thought, had put in ono of the greatest lengths of service.
There was a certain freemasonry among ringers, the Vicar added.
Messrs. D. II. Ar%yle and E. Stone, who had been instrumental in
arranging that gathering, said thez had received letters from ringers
all over England proving that Mr. Chapman had not confined his ring-
mgr abilities to Nuneaton alone. )

he presentation was made with the best wishes that Mr. Chap-
man’s ringing career was nowhere near ended, and that he would go
on for many years to come. The Vicar also paid a tribute to Mrs.
Chapman, to whom her hushand would be the first to express in-
debtedness for tile way ill which she had helped him in all the church
work he had done.

Musical honours were then accorded to Mr. Chapman. A bouquet

of pink tulips and mauve irises was presented to Mrs. Chapman by
little Miss Olive Brassington, daughter of Mr. F. Brassin%ton, who
had been a colleague of Mr. Chapman’'s at Nuneaton beliry before
moving to Coventry.
Reﬁlying, Mr. Chapman said that his ringing was a labour of love,
and he did not desire anything in return. For over 40 Years Nuneaton
Parish Church had had a good reputation iu the Midlands regarding
its ringers, It was now up to the younger men to sec that, it was
maintained. New recruits would he required to fill up the ?aps. It
was rather a difficult matter to get young men to take up bellringing,
as only about 20 per oent. made good ringers who stuck it for 20 or
30 years. It had been better of lato years, thanks to the Vicar, who
seldom refused the use of the bells. It was nice to see so many old
friends there. Mrs. Chapman and himself were delighted with the
Flfts, which had been prompted by the kind thoughts of so many of
lis ringing friends )

Mrs. Chapman also thanked the gathering.

Mr. F. W. Perrcns prokﬂosed a vote of thanks to all who had made
the gathering possible. Mr. Chapman had shown much patience and
perseverance to stay in Nuneaton for 50 years. He urged young
ringers to emulate him. Nowhere in the Ringing lIsle did ringers re-
vive a warmer welcome than in Nuneaton.

(Continued in next column.)
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SHEFFIELD AND DISTRICT SOCIETY.

APPOINTMENT OF RINGING MASTER JUSTIFIED.

The meeting of the Sheffield and District Society took place at
South Anston on Saturday, April 6th. Ringing commenced at 3 E.m.
During the afternoon a variety of methods was rung, including Lon-
don Scholars’ Pleasure, College Pleasure, Woodbine, Kingston Treble
Bob, Plain Bob, Grandsire, Stedman, Double Norwich, Cambridge,
Treble Bob, Bristol, and London Surprise, The ordered manner in
which the bells were kept going fully justified the appointment of a
Ringing Master at the aunual meeting. It was undoubtedly a great
|m(£Jrovement to have the ringing officially controlled.

ver 30 members, including the Vicar (Rev. R. Hodgson), sat down
to a splendid tea, provided in the schoolroom. The Vicar presided at
the business meeting and gave the society a hearty welcome to South
Anston.  Mr. C. Haynes (president) and Mr. Geo. Lewis (Ringing
Master) suitably replied to the Vicar's welcome. )

me% to illness near the church, the ringing terminated at 7.30
).m. sually at South Anston ringing goes otl until everybody has
liad enough.

FAREWELL TO A LEWISHAM RINGER.

A 720 of Bob Minor, with tenor covering, was rung on Sunday,
March 3Ist, by the St. Mar}/‘s, Lewisham, company, as a farewell
to a popular member, Mr. John Foskett, before his departure to
South America for three vears. It was rung by: G. R. Simmonds 1,
C. H. Walker 2, H. Warnett, sen., 3, J. Dafters 4. W. F. Tyler 5,
J. l'oskett (conductor) 6, H. Goodwin 8. This was Mr. Foskett’s first
attempt as conductor in the method.

5,216 SPLICED SURPRISE MAJOR.
BY ERNEST C. S. TURNER. -

23456 M. W. H. M. W.
65432 _ __ __ 24536 — —
34256 - - 43652 — 2
52643 - - 35426 2 2
32465 2 y4 26354 2 .
43265 53462 * —
46532 2 - - 64235 — -
35264 - - 32546 — __-
56423 - 2 24653 —
62534 2 2 45236 2 2
34625 2 - 36452 2 -
26543 - - 54263*— -
45362 - - 62345 — -
56234 - 2 43526 —
63542 2 2 32654 — 2
42635 2 - 25346 2 2
36524 - - 46253 2 -
25463 - - 52384*— -
56342 - 2 65324 -
64523 2 2 23456 —
23645 2

54632 —

24365 2

65243 2

42356

53624

63425

Each course is called London, Cambridge or Superlative, London,
with leads of Bristol inserted where more than one bob is called at
M_or W in the same course. )

This peal was first rung at St. Paulinus’, Crayford, out Saturday,
March 23rd, 1935, conducted by the composer. It consists of 2,880
London, 896 Bristol, 1,440 Cambridge and/or Superlative. A variation
can be obtained by omitting to call the bobs marked *. The peal
can then be reduced by omitting the three consecutive bobs at W
towards the end.

(Continued from previous column.)

Included in the vote of thanks were the churchwardens, who had
made the fg}athermg possible in the hall, the Nuneaton ringers for

providing the tea, and the lady helﬁers for arranging it. Mr. Perrens
asked the assembly to make up by hearty clapping what he had failed
to say. ' »

Mr. G. Hardy, one of the wardens, who replied on behalf of tin
church officials, said the splendid work done iu the belfry was niuc'i
appreciated.

Those who took part in the entertainment were Messrs. F. Mann
E\planoforte solosg, G. Wykes and C. Barnett (songs), Mr. and Mrs.

. TI. Beamish (tunes ot the handbells), and Messrs. D. H. Argyle,
F. W. Perrens, J. H. W. White, E. R. Whitehead and J. George,
who. rang a good course of .Stedman Caters.
~ The singing of the National Anthem brought a very Iiava I:E;ather-
ing to a dose. . E. B.
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RESTORATION OF WATH CHURCH BELLS.

DEDICATION OF AUGMENTED YORKSHIRE RING.

Five of the bells of All Saints’ Church, Wath-on-Dcarno, have been
recast by Messrs. J. Taylor and Co. and rehung in steel frame with
three new bells added, making a fine peal of eight, with a new tenor
approximately 13 cwt. The octave was completed through the kind
generosity of Sir. T. Wade, who gave the new tenor, and an anony-
mous donor who presented the treble and second bells.

Tho original date for opening was fixed for Sunday, April 28th, but
owing to the work being completed earlier than was expectcd the
Bishop of Sheffield kindly consented to dedicate the belts on Saturday,
April 13th, at 7.30 p.m. This did not leave much time for ringing
after the service, but, considering the late hour, there was a fairly
?ood attendance of ringers from Arksey, Barnsley, Doncaster, Eccles-
ield, Rotherham, Rawmarsh, Sheffield, Darfield and tho local com-
pany. There was a numerous congregation of parishioners. When
the service started there was scarcelr a seat vacant, which showed the
?reat interest taken in the new bells, which have been needed badly
or several years. Great credit is due to the Vicar (Rev. L. E. Mere-
dith) and the Parochial Church Council for the way they set about
the work in January last to raise the necessary funds, enabling the
scheme to be carried out in such a short time.

The Bishop of Sheffield performed the dedication, and the cler
who assisted in the service were the Vicar, the curate (Rev. R. H.
Atkins), and the Vicar of Brampton (Rev. E. Suggitt). In his ad-
dress tho Bishop contrasted the conditions of the past with those of
the present time, which showed a great improvement both in the
use of the bells and in the art of ringing them.

After the service there was a keen desire to test the quality and
1go ' of the bells, and visiting rin?ers spoke well of both the tone and
the able manner in which the bells had been hung.

The Vicar and churchwarden (Mr. A. T. Thomson) ascended the
tower to congratulate the ringers on the touch rung directly after
the service, and also extended a hearty welcome to all who cared to
come on some future date and epend a little more time in ringing.

LATE NOTICES
HARROW WEALD, MIDDLESEX.—On Easter
Sunday afternoon at 3.30 p.m. the Bishop of Willesden
will dedicate the peal which has been restored and
augmented to 8 by John Taylor & Co., Loughborough.

LONDON COUNTY ASSOCIATION AND NORTH
SOUTHWARK DIOCESAN GUILD. — Jubilee week-
end arrangements are being made for ringing, and a social
gathering in the City of London on Saturday, May 4th.
All members are invited to bring wives and sweethearts.
See next week’s issue for further particulars. Visitors
from the country desirous of week-end ringing should
communicate with T. Wilfred Taffender, 26, Southway,
Raynes Park, or Hon. Gen. Sec., Chas O. .Moore, 67,
Canonbie Road, Honor Oak, London.

GLOUCESTER AND BRISTOL DIOCESAN ASSO-
CIATION.—South Forest Branch.—Next meeting will be
held at St. Briavel’'s on Saturday,. April 27th. Bells (8)
open at 3.30. Service 4.30. Tea and meeting in Church
School 5 p.m. All ringers who require tea must let me
know by Wednesday, April 24th.—Oliver Thomas, Branch
Hon. Sec., 44, Newerne Street, Lydney, Glos.

BEDFORDSHIRE ASSOCIATION. — Biggleswade
District.—A meeting will be held at Potton on Saturday,
April 27th, Bells (6) available at 3 p.m. Tea at 5 p.m.
All ringers welcome. Please come.—C. J. Ball, 25, Temps-
ford Road, Sandy.

GLOUCESTER AND BRISTOL DIOCESAN ASSO-
CIATION.—Bristol Branch.—The next monthly meeting
will be held on Saturday, April 27th, at St. Peter’'s (City).
Bells (8) available from 3 p.m. Service at 4.30 p.m. Tea
and meeting to follow. Kindly let me know not later than
24th inst. how many for tea. Please make a special effort
to attend and support the new Guild of St. Peter's.—
Frank Skidmore, 8c, Carlyle Rd., Greenbank, Bristol, 5.
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NOTICT 5.
| THE CHARGE FOR NOTICES of Meetings inserted
under this heading is at the rate of 3d. per line (average 8
words) per insertion, with the minimum charge of 1/6.
Notices must be received not later than Tuesday.
‘ The Ringing World ' can be sent direct by post from
the Editorial Office for 4s. per quarter.

All communications should be sent to The Editorial
O ffice of * The Ringing World,” Woking, Surrey.
ELY DIOCESAN ASSOCIATION. — Wisbech

Branch.—A meeting of the Wisbech Branch will be held
at Wisbech on Saturday, April 20th. Re-opcning of the
ring of ten bells after being rehung by Mcars and Stain-
bank. Service at 3 p.m. Tea will be arranged. Prcachcr:
Rev. B. H. Tyrwhitt-Drake, Rector of Walsoken. The
bells will be rung afterwards. All ringers welcome.—
Edward Barker, Dis. Sec., Shouldham, King’'s Lynn.

KENT COUNTY ASSOCIATION.—The 55th ‘annual
general meeting will be held at Rochester, on Easter
Monday, April 22nd. Committee meeting at 11. Asso-
ciation service in the Cathedral at 12 noon. Address by
the Very Rev. the Dean of Rochester. Luncheon in the
Corn Exchange at 1 o’clock, followed by the general
meeting. The following towers will be open for ringing:
Cathedral (io), 10.30-12, 3-4, 4.45-8.30; Rainham (8),
after meeting till 8.30; Gillingham (8), Chatham (8),
Frindsbury (8), Rochester, St. Margaret’s (8), all frorr.
10.30-11.30, and after meeting until 8.30. The nearest
six-bell tower is about five miles distant, and arrange-
ments will be made for same if requested. Tickets for
luncheon, (which includes reasonable refreshment), is.
each to practising members, 3s. each others.—Fred M.
Mitchell, Gen. Hon. Sec., 114, Sun Lane, Gravesend.

CLEVELAND AND NORTH YORKSHIRE ASSO-
CIATION.—The Easter meeting will be held at Rich-
mond on Monday, April 22nd. Bells (8, tenor 13 cwt.)
will be available for ringing all day. Dinner will be pro-
vided at Bishop Blaize Hotel at 1 p.m.—E. Brown, 11,
Ingram Road, North Ormesby, Middlesbrough.

SURREY ASSOCIATION.—North-Western District.
—The next meeting will be held at Leatherhead on Easter
Monday, April 22nd. Bells available 3 p.m. Service 5
p.m. Tea 5.30 p.m., at the Institute. All ringers heartily
welcome.—D. Cooper, Hon. Dis. Sec.

MIDLAND COUNTIES ASSOCIATION.—Annual
meeting, Easter Monday, Burton-on-Trent. Bells avail-
able: St. Paul’s (10), from 10.30; Winshill (6), 11.30 to
12.30, 1.30 to 3.30, 6.30 to 7.30; Rollestone (8), 12 to 4.
Committee meet 3 p.m. Short service at St. Paul’'s 4.15

p.m. Tea and meeting in St. Paul’'s Institute 4.45. —
Ernest Morris, Gen. Hon. Sec., 24, Coventry Street,
Leicester.

ELY DIOCESAN ASSOCIATION.—Annual meeting
at Cambridge on Easter Monday. Ringing at St. Mary'’s,
St. Andrew’s, St. Bene't’'s and R.C. and at Chesterton
and Trumpington. Service at St. Mary’'s 4 p.m. Tea at
King’s Parade Caff 5 p.m., followed by annual meeting.
—B. H. Tyrwhitt-Drake, Hon. Sec.

BEDFORDSHIRE ASSOCIATION. The annual
meeting will be held at Bedford on Easter Monday, April
22nd. The bells of St. Paul (10) will be available from
10.30 a.m., St. Peter (6) later. Lunch at the Silver Grill
at 1 p.m. Annual meeting to follow.—Arthur E. Shar-
man, Hon. Sec., 199, High Street N., Dunstable.
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WORCESTERSHIRE AND DISTRICTS ASSOCIA-
TION.—The annual meeting will be held at Worcester
on Easter Monday, April 22nd. Business meeting in the
Cathedral Chapter House at 3 p.m. prompt. Chairman,
the Very Rev. A. W. Davies, M.A., D.Litt.,, Dean.
Service with address by the Dean in the Cathedral at 5
p.m. Tea will be provided at 6 p.m. Bells available:
Cathedral (12), 1 to 2.45; St. John-in-Bedwardine
(8), All Saints’ (10), St. Nicholas (6), and St. Swithin’s
(6). Subscriptions should be paid and reports obtained
in St. Helen’s Church House between 12 noon and 1 p.m.
—J. R. Newman, Hon. Sec., Sheepcote, Severn Stoke,
W orcester.

HERTFORD COUNTY ASSOCIATION.
annual meeting will be held at St. Albans on Easter
Monday. Towers of St. Peter’s, St. Michael's and St.
Stephen’s open for ringing about 2 p.m. Service at
Cathedral 4.30. Preachcr, Rev. W. C. Stainsby, Rector
of Great Bcrkhampstead. Tea at Abbey Institute after
service, followed by business meeting. High tea is.
gd. each. Please let me know if you are taking tea, by
first post Saturday, April 20th, to prevent disappoint-
ment. This is important.—G. W. Cartmel, Hon. Sec.,
DulTield, St. Albans.

NORWICH DIOCESAN ASSOCIATION. — The
annual general meeting will be held at Norwich on Easter
Monday, April 22nd. The bells of St. Peter Mancroft
(12) and St. Michael-at-Coslany (8) and All Saints’ (5)
will be at the disposal of the members from 10 a.m. Divine
service will be held in the Church of St. Peter Mancroft
at 12.30 p.m., when the address will be given by the Rev.
J. E. H. Williams, M.A., Rector of Acle. Luncheon will
be served at the Bell Hotel, Orford Hill, at 1.30 p.m.
Tickets, 2s. per head. The annual business meeting will
follow immediately after the luncheon.—Arthur L. Cole-

— The

man, Gen. Sec. and Treasurer, High Croft, North
Walsham, Norfolk.
LLANDAFF AND MONMOUTH DIOCESAN

ASSSOCIATION.—The next quarterly meeting will be
held at Llantrisant (Glam) on Easter Monday, April
22nd. Bells (8) available from 2 o'clock. Service at 4
o'clock. Tea and business meeting to follow.—J. W.
Jones, Hon. Sec., Cartref, Alteryn View, Newport, Mon.

PIDDINGTON, NORTHANTS.—The bells will be
dedicated by the Bishop of Peterborough at 3 p.m. on
Easter Tuesday. The ring of five has been restored and
augmented to six by John Taylor and Co., Lough-
borough.

ANCIENT SOCIETY OF COLLEGE YOUTHS (Es-
tablished 1637).—Meetings for practice will be held at
*St. Paul’'s Cathedral on April 30th, St. Michael’s, Corn-
hill, on the 23rd, at 7.30. 'Business meeting afterwards.
—William T. Cockerill, Hon. Sec., Frodingham, 32,
Edgeley Road, Clapham, S.W .4.

LANCASHIRE ASSOCIATION.—Manchester Branch.
—The next practice meeting will be held at Pendlebury
on Saturday, April 27th. Tower open for ringing at 6
mp.m. All welcome.—D. Brown, Hon. Sec.

TOWER CLOCKS j.

height Driven or Electric by the
WORLD'S OLDEST MAKERS
Established 1690.

b

ILLUSTRATED ART CATALOGUE ON REQUEST.
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OXFORD DIOCESAN GUILD.—Bicester Deanery
Branch.—The annual meeting will be held at Launton on
Saturday, April 27th. Tower open 2 p.m. Service 3.30.
Tea 4.15, followed by short business meeting. All
ringers welcome. For tea please notify F. Sharpe, Laun-
ton, Bicester, Oxon, before April 25th.

WINCHESTER AND PORTSMOUTH DIOCESAN
GUILD.—Basingstoke District.—A meeting will be held
at Odiham and Upton Grey on Saturday, April 27th. Bells
available from 2.30. Service in Odiham Church at 4 p.m.
Tea at 5 p.m. Business meeting follows.  All requiring
tea please notify by April 23rd, to Mr. E. Jarrold, Close
Lodge, Odiham.—J. G. Stilweli, Hon Secretary.

SUFFOLK GUILD.—The annual meeting will be held
at Sudbury on Saturday, April 27th. Bells at St. Peter’s
(8) and St. Gregory's (8) available all day. Service at
St. Gregory’s at 4.30 p.m. Tea in the Parish Hall at
5.15 at is. each. Meeting follows. Names to Mr. H. G.
Herbert, 61, Acton Lane, Sudbury.

LINCOLN DIOCESAN GUILD.—Annual meeting at
Lincoln, April 27th. Service in the Morning Chapel of
the Cathedral at 3.15 p.m. Tea at 4.30 at the Co-opera-
tive Hall, Silver Street, at is. 8d. per head, followed by
business meeting. Ringing at the Cathedral, St. Peter-at-
Gowts and St. Botolph’s, from 2 p.m. All requiring tea
please send their names without fail to Mr. G. Chester,
16, Carline Road, Lincoln, not later than Wednesday,
April 24th.—F. W. Stokes, Hon. Sec.

LANCASHIRE ASSOCIATION. — Ashton-under-
Lyne Society.— Annual meeting will be held at Ashton on
Saturday, April 27th. Bells ready 3.30 p.m. — T. E.
Loxton, Hon. Sec., 64, Currier Lane, Ashton-under-
Lvne.

'DEVONSHIRE GUILD. — Aylesbeare Deanery
Branch.—The next meeting will be held at Sowton on
Saturday, April 27th. Bells (8) at 2.30. Service at 4
p.m. Tea at 4.45. Meeting to follow. Those requir-
ing tea please notify me not later than April 22nd.—R.
Brook, Hon. Sec., 3, Greatwood Terrace, Topsham.

WINCHESTER AND PORTSMOUTH DIOCESAN
GUILD.—Isle of Wight District.—A quarterly meeting
will be held at Ryde on Saturday, April 27th. Bells (8)
available at 2.30 p.m. Service 4.30 p.m. Tea at 5
p.m., followed by business meeting. Will all those re-
quiring tea kindly notify me not later than Tuesday,
April 23rd?—H. R. James, Hon. Dis. Sec., 11, Portland
Street, Newport, Isle of Wight.

GUILD OF DEVONSHIRE RINGERS.—North-
East Branch.—A quarterly meeting will be held at Hol-
combe Rogus on Saturday, April 27th. Bells (6) 2.30.
Service 4.30. Tea 5. Will those requiring tea please
notify me by Monday, April 22nd ?—R. Harris, Hon.
Sec., Park, Silverton, near Exeter.

LANCASHIRE ASSOCIATION.—Bolton Branch.
The next meeting will be held at Holy Trinity, Bolton,
on Saturday, April 27th. Bells available from 3 p.m.
Tea in the School adjoining. Names please to Peter
Crook, Hon. Sec., 203, Devonshire Road, Bolton, Lancs.

. JOYCE & CO. LTD.

WHITCHURCH, SALOP

We have experti visiting all parti of the British
<hall be pleated to carry out restoration! or give
regarding any make of Tower Clock.

Itles and
reporti
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CHESTER DIOCESAN GUILD.— Stockport Branch.
—The next meeting will be held at New Mills on Satur-
day, April 27th. Bells available 3 p.m. Service 4.30
p.m. Tea 5.15. For tea please advise Mr. H. Barton,
9, Jodrell Street, Newtown, New Mills.—A. Whiting and
K. Lewis, Joint Secs.

CHESTER DIOCESAN GUILD.—Crewe Branch.—
The next meeting of the above branch will be held at Mar-
ket Drayton (8 bells) on April 27th. Ringing from 3
o’clock. Waill all those who intend to be present kindly
let me know by the 24th inst. ? — Rich. D. Langford,
Branch Hon. Sec., 6, Laura Street, Crewe.

BATH AND WELLS DIOCESAN ASSOCIATION.
— llchester Deanery Branch.—A meeting will be held at
Limington, near lichester, on Saturday, April 27th. Ser-
vice at 4.30. Tea and meeting to follow. For tea please
notify early.—F. Farrant, Martock, Somerset.

DONCASTER AND DISTRICT SOCIETY. — The
next meeting will be held at Bentley on Saturday, April
27th. Bells (5) ready at 3 p.m. Will all those requiring
tea please notify me not later than Wednesday, the 24th?
A good attendance at this meeting is requested. Every-
body welcome.—E. Cooper, 33, Church Street, Bentley,
Doncaster.

HASTINGS AND DISTRICT GUILD. — A meeting
will be held at All Saints’ Church, Hastings, on Satur-
day, April 27th. Tower open 3 o’clock. All ringers verv
welcome.—C. A. Levett, Hon. Sec., 238, Priory Road,
Hastings.

BATH AND WELLS DIOCESAN ASSOCIATION.
—Bath Branch.—A quarterly meeting will be held at
Twerton-on-Avon on Saturday, April 27th. Bells 3 p.m.
Service 4.30. Tea to follow.—Theo Grant, Hon. Sec.,
Swainswick, Bath.

OXFORD DIOCESAN GUILD. — Chipping Norton
Deanery Branch. — The annual spring meeting will be
held at Burford on Saturday, April 27th.—J. Keyte, Hon.
Sec., Charlbury, Oxon.

HERTFORD COUNTY ASSOCIATION— On Satur-

day, April 27th, a meeting will be held at Royston. The
bells (8) available at 3 p.m. The Vicar invites all mem-
bers, who notify him, to tea in the Church House. Post-

cards for tea to Rev. F. F. Greig, The Vicarage, Roy-
ston.— Don Mears, Hon. Dis. Sec.

GLOUCESTER AND BRISTOL DIOCESAN ASSO-
CIATION.—Swindon Branch.—A monthly meeting will
be held at Purton on Saturday, April 27th. Heavy peal
of six. Usual arrangements. Tea at Vicar’s invitation.
Please advise W. B. Kynaston, 3, Dumbarton Terrace,
Victoria Road, Swindon, Wilts.

SUSSEX COUNTY ASSOCIATION. — Northern
Division.—A meeting will be held at Cuckfield on April
27th. Tower open 2.30. Service 4.30. Tea and meet-
ing to follow. Business, to elect a new divisional secre-
tary. No rail fares. Tea will be arranged for those who
notify Mr. G. Apps, 1, Hawthorn, Chatfield Road, Cuck-
field, by Wednesday, April 24th.

G & F. COPE & CO.,
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OXFORD DIOCESAN GUILD.—Newbury Branch.—
The spring meeting of the above branch will be held at
Yattendon on Saturday, April 27th. Bells (6) available
at 3 o’clock. Service 4.30. Tea 5 p.m. All ringers
welcome. Intending visitors please notify Mr. F. Crook,
Shockendon, Yattendon, near Newbury, by Wednesday,
April 24th, for tea—H. W. Curtis, Hon. Sec., Church
Road, Shaw, Newburv, Berks.

WINCHESTER AND PORTSMOUTH DIOCESAN
GUILD.—Winchester District.— A quarterly meeting will
be held at Barton Stacey on Saturday, April 27th. Service
in the Parish Church at 4 p.m., followed by tea in the
Reading Room at 4.30. Recently restored peal of 6 bells
available at 2 o’clock. Please let us know if you are com
ing.—G. Noice and Miss Noice, Hon. Dis. Secs., 6.
Cathedral View, HighclifFe, Winchester.

WINCHESTER AND PORTSMOUTH DIOCESAN
GUILD.—Portsmouth District. — A quarterly meeting

will be held at Havant on Saturday, April 27th. Bell
(8) available from 3 p.m. Service 4.30 p.m. Tea (b
kind invitation of the Archdeacon) 5 p.m. Busines

meeting follows. All those requiring tea please notify
me not later than Thursday, April 25th. All ringers we!
come. — A. T. Greenw'ood, 14, Cobourg Street, Ports
mouth.

YORKSHIRE ASSOCIATION. — Northern District
—The annual meeting will be held at Norton (Malton'
on Saturday, April 27th. Bells (6) available durin
afternoon and evening. St. Leonard’s, Malton (8 ma
be available during evening. Tea at 5.15 at Schofields,
Yorkersgate, Malton. Service at Norton 4.30. Bus'
ness meeting at Norton Church Hall after tea. Name
for tea to Mr. H. Rowsby, Holingarth, Park Road,
Norton, Malton, before Thursday, April 25th. A heart;
welcome to all.—Edward Hudson, Hon. Dis. Sec.,
Keldale Terrace, Sharow, Ripon.

ROMNEY MARSH AND DISTRICT GUILD.—The
next meeting will be held at Hythe on Saturday, Apr |
27th. Bells ready 3 o'clock. Tea 5 p.m. — P. Page
Hon. Sec., 110, Canterbury Road, Kennington, Ashford,
Kent.

BATH AND WELLS DIOCESAN ASSOCIATION
—A quarterly meeting will be held at Dunster on Satur-
day, April 27th. Bells 2.30 p.m. Service 4 pm. Tc;t
and meeting 5 p.m.—J. T. Dyke, Hon. Sec., Chilcomp-
ton, Bath.

LEEDS AND DISTRICT SOCIETY.—General meet-
ing.—The next meeting will be held at Leeds Parish
Church on Saturday, April 27th. Bells available from 3
p.m. Business meeting in the tower at 7 p.m. Other
arrangements as usual. — H. Lofthouse, Hon. Sec., 8,
Wortley Road, Armley, Leeds 12.

SWANSEA AND BRECON DIOCESAN GUILD. —
The next quarterly meeting will be held on Saturday,
April 27th, at St. Meugan Church, Llanveigan. Ringing
at 3 p.m. Service at 4.30 p.m. Tea and meeting at
p.m.—F. E. Thomas, Dis. Sec., Belle Vue, Brecon.

NOTTINGHAM

TOWER CLOCK MANUFACTURERS.

ESTIMATES SUBMITTED FOR NEW CLOCKS,

CHIME ADDITIONS, REPAIRS*

OR REPAINTING OF DIALS.
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PETERBOROUGH DIOCESAN GUILD.—Kettering
Branch.—A quarterly meeting will be held at Rothwell
(8) on Saturday, April 27th. Usual arrangements. Please
notify me if you require tea.— H. Baxter, 256, Windmill
Avenue, Kettering.

WARWICKSHIRE GUILD. — The annual meeting
will be held at Stoke, Coventry, on Saturday, April 27th.
Bells available from 3.30. Service in church at 4.30, to
be followed by tea in St. Andrew’s Hall, Binley Road.
Business meeting to follow. Printed reports for the years
1933-34 will be distributed at this meeting.—Mrs. D. E.
Beamish, Gen. Hon. Sec., Green Ways, Gipsy Lane,
Nuneaton.

LADIES GUILD AND SURREY ASSOCIATION
(North-Western District).—A joint mid-week meeting will
be held at St. George’s, Southwark, on Wednesday, May

1st. Tower open 3.30 p.m. Tea 5.30 p.m. All are
welcome.—Mrs. E. K. Fletcher and D. Cooper, Hon.
Secs.

KENT COUNTY ASSOCIATION.—Tonbridge Dis-
trict.—The King’s Jubilee. Two days before, namely,
on Saturday, May 4th, the spring meeting will be held at
Tunbridge Wells. The district secretary appeals to all
ringers and hon. members to help make this a record
meeting. Tower open 3.15. Service at 4.30, followed
by tea and business meeting. Buses, Opera House to
St. Peter’'s Church, every few minutes. Notify me of
attendance by April 30th.—Alec Richardson, Hon. Dis.
Sec., Laurel Cottage, Victoria Road, Southborough.

GUILDFORD DIOCESAN GUILD.—Guildford Dis
trict. — Meeting at Worplesdon on Saturday, May 4th.
Bells from 3 o’clock. Service at 4.30. Numbers for tea
‘o me, please, by April 30th.—G. L. Grover, Hon. Sec.,
East Clandon, near Guildford.

KENT COUNTY ASSOCIATION.—Maidstone Dis-
rict.—The quarterly meeting will be held at Harrietsham
on Saturday, May 4th. Bells available 2.30. Further
details later. — A. Waddington, Hon. Sec., Malthouse
Farm, Egerton.

BATH AND WELLS DIOCESAN ASSOCIATION—
Axbridge Deanery.—The quarterly meeting will be held
at Congresbury on Saturday, May 4th. Bells open 2.30.
Divine service 4.0, to be "followed by tea and business
neeting. — L. G. Tanner, 4, Hopkins Street, Weston-
;uper-Mare.

MIDDLESEX COUNTY ASSOCIATION AND LON-
DON DIOCESAN GUILD.—The annual general meet;
ng will be held at St. Botolph’s, Bishopsgate, E.C., on
Saturday, May 4th. Divine service at 4.45 p.m. Preachei,
he Archdeacon of London. Meat tea at the Express
Dairy, 9, Wormwood Street, at 5.30 p.m., at Is. 3d. each.
Number for tea not later than April 30th, to either secre-
tary. Business meeting at 6.15 p.m. Ringing arrange-
ments: St. Botolph’s, Bishopsgate, 2.30 to 4.40, and
after the meeting; St. Mary-le-Bow, Cheapside, 3 to
4.30; St. Magnus’, Thames Street; St. Lawrence Jewry
and St. Olave’s, Hart Street, all from 7.30 to 9 p.m. All
members and friends welcomed.—C. T. Coles, 21, Vin-
cent Road, E.4, F. W. Goodfellow, 108, Pole Hill Road,
Hillingdon Heath, Hon. Sees.

SOCIETY FOR THE ARCHDEACONRY OF STAF-
FORD.—Quarterly meeting will be held at Pelsall on Sat-
urday, May 4th. Bells from 3. Service at 4.45, with
address by the Vicar (Rev. W. Armstrong). Tea (Is.)
at 5.30. Please send word by Tuesday, April 30th.—
H. Knight, 15, Rugby Street Wolverhampton.
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BARNBY, NOTTS.—On Thursday, May 9th, at 6.30
p.m. the Bishop of Southwell will dedicate the new treble
which has been installed to complete the peal to six by
John Taylor and Co., Loughborough.

SUSSEX COUNTY ASSOCIATION (1885-1935). —
Jubilee arrangements on Saturday, May 25th, at Brighton

are: Ringing, St. Peter's and St. Nicholas’, 1.30-3.30;
Good Shepherd, 2.30-3.30; annual meeting, St. Peter’s
Parish Room, 3.45; special service, St. Peter’s, 5.15,

address by the Bishop of Chichester; dinner and concert,
Old Ship Hotel, 6.30. Tickets for dinner and concert,
5s., from S. E. Armstrong, Ib, Chester Terrace, Brigh-
ton, 6, before first post Monday, May 20th.—A. D. Stone,
Hon. Sec.

APARTMENTS.

LLANDUDNO, NORTH W ALES.—Superior apart-
ments, centrally situated, three minutes sea front and all
amusements; bed and breakfast; garage.—Mrs. Brown,
Dalston, 5, Claremont Road, Llandudno.

WESTON-SUPER-MARE. Board-residence, bed
breakfast; central; terms moderate.—L. G. Tanner,
4, Hopkins Street, Hon. Sec., Axbridge Deanery.

PUBLICATIONS

‘GRANDSIRE DOUBLES AND TRIPLES, Simply
Explained '; also ‘ Bob Minor and Major, Simply Ex-
plained,” for beginners. 6£d. each, post free; 5s. gd. a
dozen post free; from |I. Roe and M. Broome, Byways,
Hurst, Berks.

CAMBRIDGE MINOR AND MAJOR, Simply Ex-
plained, each 7jd. post free; $ dozen, 3/6 post free;
dozen 6/g post free: to be obtained from K. Quick, 18,
Westbourne Gardens, Hove, Sussex.

“ VILLAGE BELLS.”—A self-teacher for beginners,
with rules and diagrams (five methods of Doubles, five
of Minor). Single copy 8d., four copies 2s. 6d. post
free, from Rev. R. Howes, Cold Higham Rectory,
Towcester, Northants.

BELL ROPES
BEST QUALITY, LOWEST PRICES BUNTING

HERBERT J. CRAY, LTD.

i(Jneorporating JOSH UA C. CLOQG f CO)
Rope and Flag Works - EXETER,

FLAGS AND

DEVON

TOWER CLOCKS, CARILLONS
CHIMING MACHINERY, ETC.

Over 100 yeaw experience and know-
ledge places us in a position tobe ofgreat
assistance to you regarding new clock
installations, restorations or renewals.

W e have installed many World Famous
Clocks, including those at St. Paul's
Cathedral, and Trinidad Cathedral,
British West Indies.

Settd for our Booklet 1Time and Chime.’

MIOIAND CLOCK WORKS
QUEEN STREET, DERBY

M IM S
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Cbanoe Ringing

Charles A W. Troyte.

THREE TO EIGHT BELLS
208 pages, with 3 illustrations.
Cloth 8/6, post free 8/10.
THREE TO SIX BELLS.
Sewn 1/6, post free 1/9.

INDISPENSABLE TO ALL RINGERS

EXETER:

HENRY S. ELAND, 236, HIGH STREET

ALFRED BOWELL,
church el IPgWICH

Founder -

The Jasper Snowdon Series

REVISED PRICES.

10d.; leventh ed.; ISO page*; treats Plain Bob

t]hrge bell*, . .
Od.; second ed.; 204 pages, commencing on five

*ROPE-SIGHT," 1*.

commencing, on
"GRANDSIRE 2s.

bells, complete with the Thompson Chart*, etc.

‘BTANDARD METHODS,! 8th edition fa 10Od. .
*STEDMAN,+ fa. 10d.i 275 pages, by the I»te Rot. C*EKP. D<mec.
M.A., with an appendix by the late Sir Arthur Hcywood, B .,
*TREBLE BOB, Is. 10d.; second ed.; with appendix 100 page*.
*SURPRISE METHODS," fa. 10d. A book by the late Rev. U wu. r.
Davies, M.A., F R.A.S. Contain* a tabulated list of peal*, 10

diagrams, 126 pages.

All post free, on receipt of postal order, from

Mrs. LAURA SNOWDON, Cartmel, Lancashire

The Central Council Publications

TO BE OBTAINED POST FREE.
From tho Hon. Librarian.

Rtv. B. H. TYRWHITT DRAKE, Walsoken Rectory, Wi*bech, Cs*mb(;-
GLOSSARY OF TECHNICAL TERMS 8
RULES AND DECISIONS OF THE COUNCIL AND AN
ACCOUNT OF ITS WORK. i = w 13
COLLECTION OF PEALS—Section 1. (Odd-Bell Treble-
Dominated Methods) e SETTTRTTT 1 6
COLLECTION OF PEALS—Section H. (Plain Bob and
Double Oxford Boba ....... e s 1 2
COLLECTION OF PEALS—Section Il1I. (Double Norwich) .. 1 6
COLLECTION OF PLAIN MAJOR AND CATER METHODS 1 9
COLLECTION OF DOUBLES AND MINOR METHODS .. 3 O
COLLECTION OF TRIPLES METHODS . 1 O
CORRUSENDA LEAFLET, showing false peals, theeetof three 2
MODEL RULES FOR A LOCAL COMPANY (Revised) 6
REPORT OF CONFERENCE WITH 8. P.AB ..o, 6
CARD OF INSTRUCTIONS IN THE CARE AND USE OF
BE L L S
ON THE PRESERVATION OF BELLS (Revised Edition) ... g*
Ditto, Stiff Cover* 1 O
THE LAW AFFECTING CHURCH BELLS . 3
METHOD SHEETS—Stodman and Grandsire Triples ... 3
Cambridge Surprise Major ... 3
Double Norwich and Cambridge Court 3
Bristol Surpri*e Major ... 3
HINTS TO INSTRUCTORS AND BEGLNNERS8 ..o 2
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n 'THE WORLD'S BEST BELLROPES' g
U NOTED FOP EASY HANDLING AND NON-STRETCHING H

JOHN PRITCHARD,

BIGGIN STREET,
LOUGHBOROUGH

Clock and Chiming Ropes,
Flexible Ends, Splicing and Repairs.

Price List of the
Sole Maker

Est. 1810
Tel. 630

Suitable for Presentation QL
Wedding Gift
Correctly Modelled BELL IHKSTAHD 8s&, In Solid SUvr

Diameter
Price

2%in. 2jin. 3Ein. 38n. din. tjin.
14/0 17/0 22/6 27/0 35/- 42/-

The 5in. size is also made to hold 60 cigarettes.

Initial? and Inscriptions Engraved at Moderate Charges

T. E. RUSSELL.

Telephone 276

Sin.

53
50/- 57/3

Jeweller
and Optlolft)

WOKING

METHOD SPLICING

THE NEWEST AND MOST
INTERESTING DEVELOP -
MENT OF CHANGE RINGING

Study this latest phase of
the Art and learn how to
practise it.

The system is fully explained in
*METHOD SPLICING,' prioe 1/3 (post free) from
‘ The Ringing World' Office, Woking.

Printed for the Proprietor br the Woodbridjje Pres*, Ltd., Guild-
ford, and Published by the Boll* House Publishing Co.. Ltd., Bream™
Building*, London, B.C.



